


The use of the word ‘Aboriginal’ throughout this document refers to 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people of Australia 
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Section 1 – Overview  
 
Executive Summary 
 
Managing Director’s Report 
 
The introduction of Future Skills WA strengthened the competitive environment 
in which Great Southern Institute of Technology operates, presenting a range of 
challenges.  

However, the institute performed extremely well during 2014, and ended the 
year in a very strong financial position. 

We achieved, and exceeded, our major key performance indicator with 100.2 
per cent profile, and met all budgetary targets, results which reflect the diligence 
of staff members. Their versatility and dedication also ensured students 
continued to receive high-quality training, and relationships between the 
institute and industry partners were reinforced. 

Combined with the strategies created in 2013 to address the implications of 
Future Skills WA, these factors have resulted in a rewarding and productive 
year in which academic achievement has been a priority.  

Most importantly, the institute is also clearly upholding the community’s 
expectations of high training standards, as evidenced in the Patterson Research 
Group’s Student Satisfaction Survey for 2014. This placed Great Southern 
Institute of Technology’s student satisfaction rate at 91.8 per cent, compared 
with the state average of 86.9 per cent. The institute was also ranked first 
against all State Training Providers. 

Starting the year with a robust marketing campaign and a new, user-friendly 
website, the institute built on this impetus and continued to attract students 
despite increases in tuition fees. 

Our 2014 performance was enhanced by the ongoing support of our industry 
and business partners throughout the year, and the sponsors of our 
scholarships and awards which provide tangible benefits to high-achieving 
students and those on low incomes. I extend my heartfelt thanks to these 
supporters for once again giving generously of their time and funds. 

A restructure of the institute’s directorate took place in January following the 
retirement of the Director of Training Services at the end of 2013. The five 
delivery portfolios were realigned to accommodate the altered business model, 
and the Communications and The Arts portfolio was renamed Teaching and 
Learning to better reflect its new focus. 

Formal consultation with staff stimulated discussion and brought numerous 
initiatives to inform business strategies in 2015. These include: 

• Academic Leadership Forum. This was designed to promote academic 
excellence, best practice and compliance. The group, consisting of 
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portfolio managers and advanced skills lecturers, met regularly and 
identified common issues for resolution, presenting their findings to the 
institute’s executive. 

• Emerging Leaders group. Staff under the age of 40 brought a refreshing 
take on the institute’s business processes at several meetings during the 
year. Their suggestions have been considered and action taken where 
possible to instigate new procedures incorporating their ideas. 

In April, the budgetary constraints imposed by the State Treasury necessitated 
a re-examination of priorities. Despite the necessary restrictions on expenditure 
across the institute, staff responded positively and achieved their realigned 
targets. 

Three celebrations in October marked the culmination of several months of 
preparation. These were: 

• The launch of the institute’s Reconciliation Action Plan. This vital 
document which formalises the institute’s commitment to a greater 
understanding between Aboriginal and non-Aboriginal people was 
launched by Jim Morrison of Reconciliation WA. I am proud that this 
institute is the first educational organisation in Albany to register a plan 
with Reconciliation Australia. 

• The official opening of the Health Sciences and Community Services 
block. Housing offices, classrooms and workrooms, the block was funded 
by Royalties for Regions and opened by The Hon. Terry Redman MLA, 
Minister for Regional Development, who was also representing The Hon. 
Kim Hames MLA, Minister for Training and Workforce Development. 

• The institute’s 40th anniversary celebration. Combined with the health 
block opening, this event was attended by current and former staff and 
students. A time capsule to be opened in 2054 was sealed into a wall 
cavity in the new health science building. 

During the year, facilitating training for people with disability and Aboriginal 
people was again a strategic goal for institute staff. 

People with disability enrolled in mainstream programs as well as those funded 
under tenders from the Department of Training and Workforce Development, 
such as the Busy Bee Creations program for clothing production, and Creative 
Catering. 

Pleasing results for Aboriginal students were demonstrated in the significant 
increase of nearly 25 per cent in Aboriginal students enrolling in Certificate III 
and above compared with 2013, and a 91.3 per cent module load completion 
rate at all levels. I attribute this result to the effective promotion of training by the 
Aboriginal Programs branch. 

The satellite campuses of Katanning, Mount Barker and Denmark demonstrated 
the importance of making training readily accessible to regional people, with 
good enrolment numbers in both semesters. 
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Partnerships with corporate and government bodies and a wide offering of short 
courses underpinned operations by the Skills Development Centre, the 
institute’s fee-for-service portfolio. Customised delivery at worksites throughout 
the State helped to strengthen relationships with mining and exploration 
companies, as well as government, construction and agriculture sectors. 

Through judicious use of resources – including accessing tender funding – and 
high-quality training delivery, this portfolio performed extremely well in a 
challenging market. 

The Seeds of Sustainability committee continued to boost student and staff 
participation in recycling and reusing initiatives such as through the twice-yearly 
‘Freecycling’ program for used stationery and office supplies, and the funding of 
numerous projects to save money and energy. 

One such project which has the benefit of assisting with student induction is a 
trail of 13 sustainability signs around the Albany campus, with QR codes for 
quick web access to details of the initiative featured at each site. 

The guidance provided by the Governing Council, and the members’ diverse 
business and educational expertise, was invaluable in a year in which 
unprecedented constraints were imposed on the institute’s operations. This, and 
the support of our business partners, gives the institute both resilience and 
capability to prepare for further challenges in the coming years. 

Deputy Chair Audrey Jackson retired in July and Anne Stafford, who has been a 
highly respected member of the council since 2009, succeeded Audrey as 
Deputy Chair. Joining the council mid-year, Wayne Devine brought a valuable 
Aboriginal perspective to the table.  

I anticipate more challenging times in 2015 with the further reductions in 
Government training subsidies, tighter budgetary constraints in staffing, and the 
introduction of WACE reforms. 

However, with the invaluable asset of diverse expertise in the executive 
management team and the same level of commitment shown from staff in all 
areas during 2014, I am confident this institute will be resilient and well 
positioned to maintain its status as the region’s first-choice training provider. I 
look forward to leading the institute’s professional team dedicated to helping 
people achieve their vocational education and training ambitions. 

It gives me great pleasure to present Great Southern Institute of Technology’s 
annual report for 2014. 

 

Lidia Rozlapa 
CEO/Managing Director 
15 January 2015 
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Governing Council Chair’s Report 
 
I congratulate the managing director and executive of Great Southern Institute 
of Technology for their excellent corporate governance, resulting in another 
productive and rewarding year in which all fiscal targets and key performance 
indicators were met. 

My thanks also go to all staff across the institute, who helped thousands of 
Great Southern residents to gain the skills to take them into employment or on 
to greater achievements in the workforce. 

Several accomplishments were worthy of note during the year. 

Relationships with stakeholders and industry partners were strengthened. 
These valuable alliances allow the institute to develop relevant training courses 
to answer industries’ skill demands, maximising opportunities for people and 
stimulating prosperity for regional communities. 

The institute’s continued commitment to engaging with the Aboriginal 
population, enhancing training opportunities and helping to improve 
employment outcomes for Aboriginal people, was boosted by the creation of a 
Reconciliation Action Plan, aligned with the institute’s Strategic Plan. 

Released in October, the plan gives impetus to the institute’s stance on equal 
opportunity and highlights the progress it has made over the past decades in 
regard to encouraging Aboriginal people to enrol and supporting their training. 

One of my happiest duties each year is the presentation of staff awards for 
excellence. 

In 2014, six awards were presented in four categories – two for non-teaching 
staff and four for teaching staff. 

The winners were: 

• Innovation in Teaching – Andrea Gallagher 
• Leadership in Teaching – Rod Connell and Marilyn Connell 
• Workforce Development in Teaching – Louise Hillman 
• Excellence in Non-Teaching – Justin Laing and Bob Vigar. 

Keeping abreast of the latest developments and best practice in industry is 
essential to continue to give students the highest standard of training. 
Significant investment ensured ongoing professional development was available 
on demand for lecturers and administrative staff. 

Hundreds of guests attended the institute’s open day at the Albany campus in 
August. This diversion from the career expos of previous years proved a good 
decision, with quality enquiries and strong interest in course offerings. All 
sections of the campus were open for advice, information and demonstrations, 
making this a lively and interactive event. 
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The munificence of regional businesses, organisations and philanthropic 
individuals allowed the institute to offer 58 scholarships totalling more than 
$31,000. 

I give my sincere thanks to the following scholarship sponsors, whose 
generosity facilitated study for people facing hardship: 

• The Jack Family Charitable Trust 
• The Grist Family 
• Valerie Heath 
• The Mick Young Scholarship Trust 
• Albany Chamber of Commerce and Industry 
• Albany Halfway House Association 
• Albany Youth Support Association 
• Albany Community Living Association 
• Denmark Music Foundation 

In addition, the institute garners sponsorship from businesses and individuals to 
fund the annual course awards, which encourage academic achievement. 

Many of these people donate year after year, demonstrating their enduring 
support to our students and our institute. The Governing Council is grateful for 
their generosity. 

Sponsors for 2014 were: 

• ABA Security – Caramia 
Electrical 

• Activ Business Services 
• Active Plumbing 
• Advantage Partners 
• Albany Advertiser 
• Albany Bitumen Spraying 
• Albany Chamber of 

Commerce & Industry 
• Albany City Motors 
• Albany Indoor Plant Hire 
• Albany Plaza Discount Drug 

Store 
• Albany Toyota 
• Barefoot Clothing 

Manufacturers 
• Best Office Systems 
• Bunnings Warehouse 
• Castlehow Electrical Services 
• Clarence Estate Residential 

Health & Care 
• Comfort Inn Albany 
• Countryman 
• Discovery Bay 
• Eyerite Signs 
• Financial, Administrative & 

Professional Services 
Training Council Inc 

• Great Southern Development 
Commission 

• Great Southern Employment 
Development Committee Inc 

• Great Southern Personnel 
• GT Bearings & Engineering 

Supplies 
• Institute of Certified 

Bookkeepers 
• Institute of Public 

Accountants 
• James & Ellis Accountants 
• Mr Peter Watson MLA 
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• The Hon. Robyn McSweeney 
MLC 

• Motel Le Grande 
• National Australia Bank Ltd 
• Orana Cinemas 
• RA & CM Whyte Plumbing 
• Ragamuffins Child Care 

Centre 
• Rainbow Child Care Centre 

• Regional Development 
Australia 

• Great Southern WA 
• Shire of Denmark 
• Southcoast Security Service 
• The Surgery 
• WA Country Health Service –

Great Southern Region 
• Wanslea Family Services 
• Water Corporation.

 
I give my thanks to Managing Director Lidia Rozlapa. Her strong leadership and 
commitment to academic excellence ensure the institute consistently meets all 
objectives and delivers high-quality training to the people of the Great Southern. 
 
My sincere appreciation also extends to the members of the Governing Council 
for their dedication, their keen interest in operations at all levels and their 
invaluable influence on the direction of the institute. 
   
I am pleased to present this report for 2014 and look forward to another 
successful year. 
 
 

 
 
 
Scott Leary 
Chair, Governing Council 
15 January 2015 
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Governing Council 
 
Great Southern Institute of Technology’s Governing council consists of a 
Chairperson, Deputy Chairperson, the Managing Director and 10 other 
members appointed by the Minister for Training and Workforce Development. 
Members are appointed for their expertise in education and training, industry or 
community affairs, and for their ability to contribute to the strategic direction of 
the institute. 

While the Managing Director has responsibility for the day-to-day operations, 
the Governing Council oversees the strategic and overall direction of the 
institute through the execution of its statutory functions within the Vocational 
Education and Training Act 1996, the Public Sector Management Act 1994, the 
Financial Management Act 2006 and the Financial Management Regulations 
2007. 

 
Governing Council members during 2014 
 
 
Scott Leary 
 

 
 
Chair 

 

Scott is a director of Albany City Motors, a well-established 
local motor dealer for Holden, Nissan and Isuzu. With 12 
years in the finance industry with Westpac, 16 years’ 
experience in the motor trade and now as financial controller, 
Scott offers an extensive working knowledge of management 
and processes. Scott has served as Chair of the Governing 
Council since January 2013. 

  
 
Anne Stafford 
 

 
Deputy Chair  

 

Anne held a senior executive position at Central Institute of 
Technology (formerly Central TAFE) in Perth for eight years 
before marrying an Albany resident in 2002, and taking early 
retirement to live in Albany. She has chaired the board at 
Albany Worklink, served on the board at Parklands School, 
and been a volunteer tutor to an Afghani immigrant and to 
students at Lockyer Primary School. Her qualifications are in 
anthropology and teaching. Anne joined the Governing 
Council in 2009 and was appointed Deputy Chair in 
December 2014. 
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Lidia Rozlapa 
 

CEO/Managing Director 

 

Lidia is Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director of 
Great Southern Institute of Technology and holds a Bachelor 
of Education and several related teaching qualifications. She 
is a member of the State Training Providers’ Group and 
participates in the Managing Directors’ Network and Regional 
Managing Directors’ Network. Lidia has seen the institute 
grow from 250,000 Student Curriculum Hours (SCH) to 1.142 
million SCH and has expanded the training reach throughout 
the 39,000 sq km of the Great Southern. 

  
Simon Lyas 
 

Member 

 

Simon is the Executive Officer of Regional Development 
Australia Great Southern (RDA). In this position, he works 
with a range of community stakeholders to identify, support 
and promote economic development opportunities within the 
region. A former primary and high school teacher, Simon has 
a particular interest in education and training and uses the 
RDA networks to assist with workforce planning and skills 
development across a range of industry sectors. He also 
brings extensive experience in government and public sector 
management to the Governing Council. 

  
Mark Dowling 
 

Member 

 

Mark Dowling joined the Governing Council in 2012. He is a 
member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors, a 
qualified and experienced financial planner, and Managing 
Director – with his business partner – of Life Insurance and 
Super. Mark is a former student of Great Southern Institute of 
Technology who approaches his role on the Governing 
Council from a student perspective as well as at a strategic 
level. His extensive financial planning experience helps the 
institute to maximise its commercial opportunities. 
 

David Marsh 
 

Member 

 

With three decades of experience in the plumbing industry, 
David has worked as divisional manager with Active 
Plumbing, one of the region’s biggest plumbing firms, for the 
past 15 years. He has seen generations of plumbers progress 
from apprentices through to tradespeople, estimators and 
ultimately, managers. This was a pathway he took himself 
and he now runs this successful plumbing operation, which 
has a vast and complex client base. He has trained many 
apprentices, and has a passion and drive for developing the 
industry, particularly by nurturing young people. 
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Suzanne Yewers 
 

Member 

 

Suzanne has lived in Narrikup and assisted with the 
management of her family’s farm since 1998. To better 
understand the land, she completed a Diploma of 
Sustainability in 2011, and a Vocational Graduate Certificate 
in Education and Training for Sustainability in 2013.  Suzanne 
is administration and training manager for Narrikup-based 
Fletcher International WA, Australia’s largest sheep and lamb 
processor which exports to more than 90 countries. 
A mature-aged student, Suzanne is also a member of the 
Australian Red Cross Emergency Response Services Unit 
and the Australian Institute of Company Directors. She is a 
Director of South Coast Natural Resource Management and – 
for exercise as part of her busy lifestyle – a paddler with the 
Denmark Dragon Boat club. 

  
Veronica Fleay 
 

Member 

 

Veronica (Ronnie) Fleay has an extensive record of high-level 
community, State Government and local government service, 
as well as several years’ experience as a small business 
operator. Kojonup-born Ronnie lived in Exmouth for 12 years 
before returning to the Great Southern in 2011. She has 
served as Chair of the Gascoyne Development Commission 
and sat on the Gascoyne Regional Council, the Western 
Australian Planning Commission, the Ningaloo Coast 
Planning Committee and the Western Australian Local 
Government Association. Former President of the Shire of 
Exmouth, Ronnie is currently Kojonup Shire President. She 
has a passion for regional development and a drive to 
improve education and training opportunities for people in 
regional areas, particularly disadvantaged youth and 
Aboriginal people. Ronnie has a broad perspective of the 
issues facing those in remote and rural communities. 

 
Suresh 
Balakrishnan 
 

 
 
Member 

 

A barrister and solicitor of the Supreme Court of Western 
Australia since 2005, Suresh Balakrishnan has lived in Albany 
for 12 years, and is now employed by Latro Lawyers. Suresh 
had practiced law in India for seven years before moving to 
Australia in 1999, and graduating from Murdoch University 
with a Master of Laws two years later. In addition to his 
extensive legal expertise, Suresh has a keen interest in 
education and training and a desire to contribute, through 
judicious decision-making, to a better educational 
environment. 
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Wayne Devine 
 

Member 

 

As Manager of Aboriginal Education at the Department of 
Education in Albany, Wayne has influenced the strategic 
direction of Aboriginal school students’ education in the 
region while promoting pathways to training and good 
careers. Wayne has developed a strong working relationship 
with the institute, delivering cultural awareness training for 
institute staff and working closely with lecturers delivering 
training to Aboriginal people. Wayne brings valuable research 
information and data to inform the board of the Governing 
Council. 
 
 

Retired in 2014    
Deputy Chair Audrey Jackson 
Member Gillian Evans. 
 
 
Operational Structure  

 
 
 
In 2014, the institute reported to The Hon. Dr Kim Hames MLA, Deputy Premier, 
Minister for Health; Training and Workforce Development, and The Hon. Liza 
Harvey MLA, Minister for Police; Road Safety; Training and Workforce 
Development; Women’s Interests. 
 

14 



Legislation 
 
Enabling Legislation 
 

• Vocational Education and Training Act 1996  
• Vocational Education and Training (Colleges) Regulations 1996 
• Vocational Education and Training (General) Regulations 2009. 

 
Other Legislation  
 
Other legislation affecting the functions and operations of Great Southern 
Institute of Technology includes, but is not limited to:   

State Legislation 
• Auditor General Act 2006 
• Building and Construction Industry Training Levy Act 1990 
• Building and Construction Industry Training Fund and Levy Collection Act 

1990  
• Children and Community Services Act 2004 
• Corruption and Crime Commission Act 2003 
• Criminal Code Act Compilation Act 1913 
• Disability Services Act 1993 
• Education Service Providers (Full Fee Overseas Students) Registration 

Act 1991 
• Electoral Act 1907 
• Electronic Transactions Act 2011 
• Equal Opportunity Act 1984 
• Evidence Act 1906 
• Financial Management Act 2006 
• Freedom of Information Act 1992 
• Industrial Relations Act 1979 
• Library Board of Western Australia Act 1951 
• Limitation Act 2005 
• Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 1993 
• Occupational Health and Safety Act 1984 
• Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003 
• Public Sector Management Act 1994 
• Salaries and Allowances Act 1975 
• School Education Act 1999  
• State Records Act 2000 
• State Supply Commission Act 1991 
• Workers’ Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981 
• Working with Children (Criminal Record Checking) Act 2004. 
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Commonwealth Legislation 
• Competition and Consumer Act 2010 
• Copyright Act 1968 
• Copyright Amendment (Digital Agenda) Act 2000 
• Corporations Act 2001 
• Education Services for Overseas Students Act 2000 
• Electronic Transactions Act 1999 
• Evidence Act 1995 
• Fringe Benefits Tax Act 1986 
• Higher Education Support Act 2003 
• Mutual Recognition Act 1992 
• National Vocational Education and Training Regulator Act 2011 
• Privacy Act 1988 
• Skilling Australia’s Workforce Act 2005 
• Spam Act 2003 
• Trade Marks Act 1995. 

 

 

Placing a time capsule into a wall of the newly opened Health Sciences and 
Community Services block in October are Great Southern Institute of 
Technology Managing Director Lidia Rozlapa and The Hon. Terry Redman 
MLA, Minister for Regional Development, who was also representing The Hon. 
Kim Hames MLA, Minister for Training and Workforce Development.  
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Performance Management Framework 
 
The performance management framework ensures that government goals are 
supported at agency level by specific desired outcomes, and that the institute 
can align and measure performance against these goals.  

Skilling WA is the whole-of-government response to workforce development 
issues in Western Australia. Embedded within Skilling WA is the government’s 
10-year plan for the training sector, Training WA. 

The institute’s Strategic Plan 2013-2015 aligns to the State Government’s 
Training WA goals. 

Institute outcomes reflect the priorities of Training WA and are assessed by key 
performance indicators in both the Managing Director’s Management 
Performance Agreement, and the annual Delivery and Performance Agreement 
negotiated with the VET (WA) Ministerial Corporation.  

Risk management is integral to the ongoing business planning process.  

The following illustrates the relationship between the institute outcomes and the 
goals of Training WA.   
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Section 2 – Agency Performance 
 
Report on operations 
 
Established in 1974 as the Albany Technical School, Great Southern Institute of 
Technology is the region’s largest training provider. 

The institute operates campuses in Albany, Mount Barker, Katanning and 
Denmark, from where it delivers a broad scope of qualifications as well as 
professional and skills development courses to answer the demands of 
individuals and businesses in Great Southern communities. 

The institute delivers qualifications from Certificate I to Advanced Diploma, 
within the Australian Qualification Framework (AQF), under training packages 
accredited with the Training Accreditation Council (TAC). 

Courses are delivered on campus, online, in the workplace, at community 
resource centres and in high schools. The student population stood at 6263. 

In 2014, the institute delivered 1,068,671 student curriculum hours (SCH). A 
further 169,508 SCH was generated through non-profile delivery, from 
competitive tenders and fee-for-service products through the Skills 
Development Centre. 

Six portfolios in 2014 were: 

• Business and Creative Industries 
• Health Sciences and Community Services 
• Trades and Allied Industries 
• The Environment and Primary Industries 
• Teaching and Learning 
• Skills Development Centre. 
 
Great Southern Institute of Technology offers specialised services in: 
  
• Workforce development 
• Workforce training and assessment 
• Apprenticeships and traineeships 
• Risk management 
• Corporate training 
• Industry consultancy 
• Delivery of Bachelor of Science (Nursing) through Curtin University. 
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Student profile 2014 
 
Total course enrolments: 7388 
40 per cent female students 
60 per cent male students 
6.2 per cent of students were of Aboriginal or Torres Strait Islander origin 
8 per cent of students reported a disability 
Median Age: 34.6 
 
 
Age group Percentage of students 
Under 25 years 34.4 
25 to 45 years 37.9 
46 and over 27.7 
 
 
Delivery level Percentage of students 
Diploma and above   4.4 
Certificate IV 14.6 
Certificate III 52.1 
Certificate II 13.1 
Certificate I 14.8 
 
Figures are from all fund sources. 
 
 
 

 

Vocational Student of the 
Year for 2014 Natalie 
Pearson. 
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Directorate Reports 
 
Corporate Services Directorate 
 
Role and function 
 
The Corporate Services Directorate provides institute-wide support in the areas 
of: 

• Finance 
• Human resources 
• Facilities and services 
• Capital works 

• Information technology 
• Records management  
• Business systems. 

 
Major achievements 
 
All outcomes have been achieved for the directorate with the following 
representing the major achievements for each business unit. 
 
Finance 
The institute achieved all financial targets, which included a reduction in funding 
for RPL-based services. 
 
Facilities, and capital and minor works 
A substantial capital and remedial works program was completed throughout 
the year. This included a $5.76 million health science facility located at the 
Albany campus, and remedial work upgrades in excess of $1.5 million. 
Notable major works included upgrades to the institute’s sewer, gas and fire 
systems, asbestos removal, repairs to roofing and walkways, upgrades to aged 
carpets, fittings and toilets, and upgrades to welding workshop facilities. 
 
Information and communication technology 
A significant number of broad and complex ITC projects were completed 
throughout the year, with a large number of projects funded through Royalties 
for Regions received in the previous year.   

The continued focus on end-user experience, accessibility and service delivery 
has resulted in greater student experience, enhanced teaching and delivery 
resources and improved administrative efficiencies. 

Projects completed throughout the year including wifi connectivity to Katanning 
and Mount Barker campuses, Adobe and Mac Lab software upgrades, email 
archiving, video conferencing infrastructure, security camera upgrades, 
installation of a back-up power failure generator, antivirus replacement, server 
memory increases, PC replacement schedule and completing stage two of the 
institute’s website upgrade. 
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Human resources 
The application to the State Government’s Voluntary Severance Scheme 
resulted in three staff accepting voluntary severances, assisting the institute to 
achieve Treasury-imposed salary cap restrictions. 
All policies and procedures were updated, residual paper records were 
transferred to the institute’s record management system and the HR team 
ensured induction and staff reviews were completed. 

The number of workers’ compensation claims for the year totalled five. The 
institute continued to promote workplace health and safety  through a targeted 
review strategy. 

The focus for OSH included updating all emergency evacuation planning for all 
campuses and a fire management plan for the plantation, and conducting an 
emergency lock-down. 

Business systems 
The team played a critical role in sector-wide testing for business system 
upgrades throughout the year with the introduction of Future Skills WA and VET 
FEE-HELP and changes to industry profile and funding settings. 

Records management 
New retention and disposal schedules were loaded into the records 
management system, resulting in a significant reduction of paper-based file 
storage, improving and streamlining sourcing of documents in addition to 
improved current office and storage space. 

The year ahead 
 
The institute is planning the refurbishment of the library to become a Learning 
Resource Centre. 

Intranet and video conferencing facilities will be completed, and the student 
learning system Moodle will be upgraded. 
 

 

The $5.76 million Health Sciences and Community Services block at the Albany 
campus, opened in October 2014. 

21 



Organisational Effectiveness Directorate 
 
Role and function 
 
The Organisational Effectiveness directorate includes functional units 
responsible for: 
 

• Aboriginal program delivery 
• Disability access and 

inclusion 
• Institute communications 
• Regional campus 

administration 

• Student services and support 
• Student administration and 

payments 
• Governance and strategic 

planning 
• Library Resource Centre. 

 
Functions of the directorate encompass: 
 

• Provision of high-level advice on economic trends and policies impacting 
on institute operations 

• Management of strategic planning, governance and risk 
• Management of the Disability Access and Inclusion Plan 
• Management of the Duty of Care for Minors Policy 
• Management of student support strategies including employment 

services, scholarships and pastoral care  
• Management of Kadadjiny Noongar Moort Aboriginal training strategy 
• Management of the Reconciliation Action Plan 
• Management of student records 
• Coordination of institute and community events including the award night 

and career expo 
• Student enrolments and administration, including TAFE admissions and 

VET FEE-HELP 
• Management of regional campuses 
• Management of the library  
• Management of institute website content 
• Media promotion and student publications. 

 

Major Achievements 
 
In 2014 the directorate grew the institute’s scholarship program by securing 
major donations from the Jack Family Charitable Trust and the South West 
Aboriginal Land and Sea Council. 

Relationships with the Aboriginal community were strengthened as members 
were engaged in the development of an Aboriginal Reconciliation Action Plan 
aligned to the institute’s strategic plan. 

Traffic through the institute’s new website was boosted, and the website was 
combined with social media to effectively market training programs. 
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The directorate also managed student payment plans to ensure student debt 
did not impact on the viability of training delivery, and reviewed and revised the 
institute’s risk management framework. 

Major events organised by this directorate included the institute’s 40th 
anniversary celebrations and the opening of the $5.6 million Health Sciences 
and Community Services block. 

Key Challenges 
 
Future Skills WA will continue to change the way training providers and students 
interact within the vocational education and training marketplace. As a result of 
increases in course fees, and increased competition for publicly funded training, 
the institute expects students to place a greater emphasis on value. The 
directorate will reflect this emphasis by reviewing product and service 
development and customer service, and by raising public awareness of the 
benefits of studying with the region’s largest provider of VET courses. 

As many of the directorate’s functions support frontline delivery, the directorate 
will be impacted by the government’s workforce renewal policy. 

The Year Ahead 
 
The institute will work with the Aboriginal community to meet the KPIs of the 
Reconciliation Action Plan. This formal framework with the Aboriginal 
community will ensure the institute can better respond to Aboriginal community 
expectations. 

A significant refurbishment and re-imagining of the library resource centre to 
create a more contemporary learning space is planned for 2015. 

It is anticipated that changes to governance will be required as a result of the 
review of the VET Act and recommendations of the Seares review into 
vocational education and training. The directorate will work with the Governing 
Council to ensure that any changes are effectively managed. 

  

The institute 
commissioned 
Noongar artist 
Errol Eades to 
produce a 
painting to 
commemorate 
the launch of 
its 
Reconciliation 
Action Plan. 

23 



Portfolio Reports 
 
Business and Creative Industries 
 
Role and function 
 
The Business and Creative Industries portfolio provides training and workforce 
development in the following areas: 

• Accounting and bookkeeping 
• Office administration 
• Management 
• Project management 
• Work health and safety 
• Tourism and events 

• Information technology 
• Government 
• Design and media 
• Music 
• Visual art 

 
Major achievements 
 
The portfolio was successful in gaining funding through a Workplace English 
Language and Literacy (WELL) tender to support the delivery of Certificate IV in 
Frontline Management to staff at the City of Albany. 

For the second year, funding was also secured for an Education and Training 
Participation Plan (ETPP) program for students in Katanning. This is an 
alternative program for school-aged students, for which funding has also been 
gained for 2015. 

The development of online products for 10 qualifications was finalised. The 
portfolio has had a steady increase in online enrolments, particularly in the 
finance area. 

Key challenges 
 
Strong competition from private providers has seen a reduction in student 
numbers. Strategies have been implemented to improve these areas and will 
continue in 2015 to ensure the institute remains the region’s provider of choice. 

Delivery and assessment of industry-based trainees across the region, and 
beyond, remains a challenge. We are currently servicing 49 trainees in 18 
locations across the Great Southern. Christmas and Cocos Island 
administrators pay us for our expertise in supporting their trainees.  

The year ahead 
 
Portfolio plans for 2015 include: 

• Finalising the negotiation of computer training for staff at Albany Senior 
High School 
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• Increasing delivery and auspice in schools, notably the start of the 
Certificate II in Tourism at Katanning Senior High School, the Certificate 
II in Music at Denmark Agricultural College and the Certificate II in 
Business at Denmark Senior High School 

• The introduction of a new Diploma of Management program running one 
night a week 

• Negotiations are continuing with the University of Western Australia 
(Albany) for guaranteed university places. 

Growth will be concentrated on online training, institution-based programs and 
industry-relevant workshops. 

 
Health Sciences and Community Services 
 
Role and function 
 
The Health Sciences and Community Services portfolio has a focus on people 
and communities. Its primary role is to provide training for individuals and 
workforce development in the following areas:  

• Children’s services  
• Aged care  
• Education support  
• Career development and 

employment services  
• Community services – youth, 

disability and mental health 

• Fitness, sport and recreation  
• Dental  
• Mentoring  
• Nursing  
• Allied health  
• Massage. 

 
Major achievements 
 
In September, the portfolio moved into the offices and classrooms of the $5.76 
million Health Sciences and Community Services block. 

While continuing to meet the demand for the delivery of a suite of aged care 
programs across the region, the portfolio also secured two tenders targeted at 
existing aged care workers. These were the Certificates III and IV in Aged Care 
Work, funded by Aged Care Workforce Vocational Education and Training 
(ACWVET). 

Additional tenders, from the Department of Training and Workforce Development, 
were for the Certificate III in Mentoring (Wirdanyiny) and the Certificate II in GATE 
(Aboriginal School-Based Training). 

Fitness programs were piloted with the Certificates III and IV in Fitness offered in 
both semesters in partnership with the Albany Leisure and Aquatic Centre. In 
Semester 1, the Certificate III attracted good numbers of school leavers, some of 
whom articulated from sports programs delivered in the high schools. Most of these 
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students continued on to the Certificate IV in Semester 2, and a number of them 
have gained employment, or enrolled in university or in other health programs at the 
institute. 

All Diploma of Children’s Services graduates gained employment or enrolled in 
university. 
 
In Community Services, a record number of Diplomas was completed. This was 
despite increasing competition from private registered training organisations, and 
testament to the close relationships between the portfolio and the community 
services industry. 
 
Key challenges 
 
In 2013 after more than 10 years of delivering the BSc (Nursing), Curtin University 
presented a distributed model of delivery to the institute, increasing the time taken to 
complete a degree to five years. This was seen as unacceptable to the institute and 
we are currently negotiating with other universities across Australia to provide a 
more effective model for our client base. 
 
Clinical places for our nursing students remains a challenge as we now have to 
compete with students from Perth and Bunbury, from all universities and State 
Training Providers. 
 
The year ahead 
 
Local strategies and initiatives will be developed in consultation with the Western 
Australian Country Health Service (WACHS) and the Department of Health to 
increase the number of nursing placements within the region. Further strategies will 
address the issue of field or work placements for students across other delivery 
areas, as these are essential for assessing competency. 

In 2015, the portfolio will continue to work closely with agencies to meet the ongoing 
local demand to service trainees in the study area of disability. 

New areas of training include the development of nutrition and dietetics skill sets and 
a preparatory program in community services for an Aboriginal client group, which 
will improve student access to pathways within the sector. 

 

The institute’s own publication 
Personal Care Support for 
Direct Care Workers is an e-
book for the iPad. It is used 
extensively in delivery of aged 
care courses.  
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The Environment and Primary Industries 
 
Role and function 
 
This portfolio provides training for individuals and workforce development in the 
following areas: 

• Agriculture 
• Forestry 
• Conservation and land 

management 
• Horticulture 
• Organic horticulture 

• Aquaculture 
• Viticulture 
• Laboratory skills 
• Shearing 
• Shed handing 
• Wool classing. 

 
Major achievements 
 
Achieving, and exceeding, profile targets at 109 per cent was a major accomplishment 
for The Environment and Primary Industries portfolio in 2014. 

Industry contacts and networks were consolidated and extended during the year. These 
included: 

• The Food, Fibre and Timber Industries Training Council 
• WA Nursery Industry Association, for reaccreditation of the institute’s nursery 
• Forest Training Association 
• Forest Products Commission 
• Dairy Australia (National Centre for Dairy Education Australia). 

 
The portfolio was again successful in winning tenders for the delivery of industry short 
courses for the Australian Wool Innovation and for course delivery and assessment of 
horticulture trainees based on Christmas Island. 

A contract for growing arid-land native plants for a Gnowangerup farmer was funded 
under the Carbon Neutral Grant Project. 

Key challenges 
 
For the portfolio to respond to the training demands of industry, recruiting suitably 
qualified lecturers with up-to-date expertise was, and remains, an ongoing challenge. 

The year ahead 
 
A partnership with Grain Trades Australia and the Grain Industry Association of 
Western Australia for the delivery of the Diploma of Grain Management will present new 
opportunities, including the delivery of skill sets. 

New to our scope for 2015 are Indigenous land management courses for delivery 
throughout regional Western Australia and Christmas and Cocos Islands. This will 
include assessment through Recognition of Prior Learning. 
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Industry skill sets will be developed for expansion into industry and inclusion in the 
delivery of all full-time courses – for example, the chemical skill sets to claim the 
Department of Health’s pesticide applicator’s licences. 

Trades and Allied Industries 
 
Role and function 
 
The Trades and Allied Industries portfolio provides training and workforce development 
in the following industry areas:  

• Automotive 
• Building and construction 
• Cabinetmaking 
• Plumbing and gas fitting 
• Electrical 
• Hospitality 
• Beauty therapy 

• Hairdressing 
• Civil construction 
• Clothing and textiles 
• Metal fabrication 
• Residential drafting 
• Cleaning operations 
• Retail. 

 
Major achievements 
 
The portfolio delivered 78 courses to 952 students, and achieved 100 per cent of 
profile. 

A diverse range of tenders were delivered, including: 

• The Diploma of Civil Engineering under CSF funding 
• Building and Construction and Building Maintenance courses at Denmark Senior 

High School, Mount Barker Community College and the Albany campus, funded 
under the Construction Training Fund. 

We continued to provide training to people with disability. This was the third year of our 
Busy Bee Creations course, which included clothing production, marketing and sales 
skills.  

Creative Catering was delivered in the hospitality section. These students catered for a 
number of institute functions and fundraisers. This program was also welcomed by 
other sections of the institute and helped to integrate people with disability into the 
wider institute community. 

Hospitality programs were delivered at four high schools, and building and construction 
training was delivered at three high schools. 

Key challenges 
 
Maintaining the industry currency of staff in their trade remains problematic. 

Increasingly, our lecturers are employed in industry and lecturing at the institute. This 
ensures industry currency and exposes our lecturers to modern practices. 
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The Trades portfolio was involved in a national strategic audit for VET in Schools during 
Semester 1. The audit covered the Certificate II in Engineering at St Joseph’s College, 
delivered at the school’s trade training centre.  
The year ahead 
 
In 2015, two electrotechnology pre-apprenticeship courses will be delivered in 
Semester 1 and two in Semester 2. 

Streamlining of all training packages will be a key challenge for the year ahead with all 
training packages changing format over the coming 12 months. 

Teaching and Learning 

Role and function 

Teaching and Learning provides VET programs in underpinning skills and professional 
qualifications for training.  

In addition to strategically coordinating relationships with prisons and the school sector, 
the portfolio provides a professional development program for academic staff, takes 
responsibility for academic AQTF compliance and manages the institute’s scope.  

Major achievements 
 
The portfolio is undertaking a major review of academic policies and procedures. 

To support the provision of quality training, the majority of institute staff have gained the 
required language, literacy and numeracy unit. Also, the significant uptake of student 
support programs USIQ and CAVSS has indicated a greater understanding of the 
literacy and language needs of the student cohort and the funded options to support 
students. 

Arrangements with schools for 2015 delivery have been achieved on time with 
memorandums of agreement in place for both profile and auspice delivery across the 
region and beyond. 

A review of the internal audit process has been completed, and a new process set for 
2015. 
 
Key challenges 
 
The re-registration audit conducted in 2013 required remediation actions in 2014 to 
achieve compliance. These were achieved. A growing need to support students’ 
foundation skills has resulted in an increased demand for supporting programs.  

The institute continues to champion academic excellence and encourage all staff to 
seek university graduation.  

The year ahead 
 
A major challenge will be the implementation of the new AQTF standards. This requires 
a significant revision of academic policies and procedures to ensure compliance. 
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The development of a systematic approach to professional development is required to 
ensure all lecturers participate in, and continue to participate in, professional and career 
development in both training and their industry area, and so that the system is easy to 
administer and demonstrate. 

Determining, developing and maintaining the appropriate scope for the institute in line 
with the strategic direction is an imperative, as is determining the position of the institute 
within the training market and the local community. 

The focus of Teaching and Learning for 2015 will be the transition to the new standards 
and appropriate professional development for lecturing staff. 
  
Skills Development Centre 
 
Role and function 
 
The Skills Development Centre is the fee-for-service arm of the institute, delivering an 
extensive range of short courses to individuals, government and corporate sectors. The 
centre competes in the open market for tendered program funding, in addition to 
delivering skills development and lifestyle courses on a user-pays basis. 

Complementary products include workforce development planning and consultancy 
services, international student recruitment and off-shore projects. 

Major achievements 
 
The year was a mixed one for the Skills Development Centre, with the flow of funds for 
tendered programs starting to increase as State and Commonwealth Governments 
redefined their training priorities following State and Federal elections in the previous 
year. In the fee-for-service area, we also started to experience the impacts of a more 
competitive training environment as a result of the introduction of the entitlement model. 

In 2014, approximately 3100 students participated in 405 Skills Development Centre 
short courses. Training occurred throughout the State of WA, across industry areas 
such as mining, construction, oil and gas, agriculture, local government and civil 
construction. High-risk licensed programs and earthmoving training continued to be in 
demand, as were generic and specialist workplace health and safety programs. 

During 2014, the centre sought to consolidate its existing partnerships and build new 
relationships, in the face of increasing market competitiveness. In line with 
contemporary market demand, trainers worked closely with our clients to ensure that 
products and services were customised to the needs of each work site. As a result of 
this investment, existing partnerships were re-affirmed and trainers deployed 
throughout the State to undertake training and assessment services. 

Tendered training activity continued through contracts with the Departments of Training 
and Workforce Development, and Agriculture and Food, in addition to Commonwealth 
Government Departments. Contracts were awarded in areas including literacy, health, 
drought reform and employment preparation. 

The key achievement for the Skills Development Centre in 2014 was the consolidation 
and maintenance of existing markets in an environment dominated by falling commodity 
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prices and the contraction of training services to this sector. This was partially offset by 
an increase in tender funds flowing into the market. 
 
Key challenges 
 
The main challenge faced by the Skills Development Centre, as a public sector agency, 
is our ability to operate effectively in a competitive environment while still operating 
within the confines of the VET Act.   

Our challenge is to continue to grow markets in which we excel. 

The year ahead 
 
The Skills Development Centre is a mature business with an established market 
position, which forms the foundation for attracting and maintaining clients. In 2015, the 
centre will continue to work towards maintaining existing business levels through the 
provision of high-quality services and responsiveness to client needs. 

The building of new business will be centred around the development of partnerships 
with synergistic organisations, to achieve outcomes that benefit the Great Southern 
region and the State. 

 
Library Resource Centre 
 
The Library Resource Centre provides services, resources and facilities in support of 
the educational delivery and professional development programs delivered by Great 
Southern Institute of Technology. 

Major achievements 
 
Primo software was implemented and promoted to students and staff. This software 
simultaneously searches the library catalogue and online content such as journal 
databases, presenting the results as one consolidated list. 

Library Guides were produced for a range of subject areas, allowing lecturers to 
incorporate these comprehensive information guides into their Moodle sites. Library 
staff are currently working with the latest version of this software which incorporates 
significant new features. 

The print-based library collection has been reviewed. Older print-based resources have 
been replaced with a smaller number of current print and digital resources. 

Key challenges 
 
The ongoing proliferation of online information sources continues to pose a significant 
challenge to information specialists who need to ensure that the most current and 
relevant resources, in a range of formats, are identified and communicated to staff and 
students.  
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The concomitant reduction in use of the library’s print resources and other facilities has 
led to a re-examination of the existing services and premises, leading to proposed 
reconfiguration and refurbishment of the library in 2015. 
 
The year ahead 
 
The library’s continued collaboration through the Learning Resource Services Network 
(LRSN) will see the implementation of a new unified library services platform which will 
support an entire suite of library operations – acquisitions, metadata management, 
discovery and analytics – for the full spectrum of library materials, regardless of format. 
This upgrade will serve the State Training Providers well into the future. 

Library staff will continue to undertake research, in collaboration with lecturers, to 
identify the best digital and hard copy information resources to support course delivery 
and professional development. 

Plans for a re-configured library which will incorporate a greater number and variety of 
collaborative learning areas, equipped with the range of requisite technology, will be 
implemented. 
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Section 3 – Significant Issues Impacting the Agency 
 
Significant Issues, Economic and Social Trends 
 
Great Southern Institute of Technology is the largest provider of education and training 
in the Great Southern region of Western Australia, and in 2014 delivered more than 1.3 
million SCH and managed more than 7000 course enrolments.  

The institute operates campuses in Albany, Mount Barker, Denmark and Katanning, 
and has delivery agreements with the region’s Community Resource Centres. This 
significant footprint positions the institute to respond to community and industry 
expectations in respect to the provision of publicly funded VET training.  

As the only State Training Provider based in the Great Southern region, the institute 
has an obligation to meet the diverse training needs of both community and industry. 
This obligation is reflected in the broad scope of the institute’s qualification profile and 
the diversity of the student body: 

• 269 qualifications are delivered from the 33 training packages and 15 accredited 
courses on the institute’s scope 

• 10.6 per cent of institute enrolments are full time 
• 17.4 per cent of students identify as being either Aboriginal, ESL, or having a 

disability 
• 44 per cent of students had a previous educational level below Year 11. 

The region continues to have a disproportionate number of people who have not 
completed Year 12 or completed an equivalent VET qualification. ABS data confirms 
anecdotal comments that workplaces in the region are being affected by low levels of 
literacy and numeracy.  

The regional population is estimated to be 59,000 with about 61 per cent resident in the 
Albany LGA.  

In the decade to June 2013, the population of the Great Southern increased by slightly 
less than 1 per cent per year and the Western Australian Planning Commission 
forecasts that the population of the Great Southern will continue to rise steadily to 
approximately 70,500 by 2026. 

Growth will continue to focus on the south coastal LGAs of Albany, Denmark and 
Plantagenet. Inclusion of Katanning in the Royalties for Regions ‘Super Town’ program 
is forecast by the Department of Local Government and Regional Development to 
generate growth in this LGA. 

Of the regional population, 30.4 per cent was aged over 55 years, compared with 23.5 
per cent for Western Australia. This trend towards an older demographic is forecast to 
continue with the region attracting relatively high numbers of retirees and lifestyle 
migrants. 

The region has 2.6 per cent of the WA labour force, with an estimated unemployment 
rate for Albany of 5.6 per cent, and in Katanning of 9.5 per cent (Department of  
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Employment, December 2013). What is not clear is the extent to which the labour force 
is underemployed; although an average taxable income of 20 per cent below the state 
average signifies under employment in this region is significant.  

Of regional residents, 4.5 per cent identify as Aboriginal. Aboriginal unemployment is 
16.5 per cent with a participation rate of less than 50 per cent. (The regional 
participation rate is over 70 per cent) and only 18 per cent of the Aboriginal population 
have completed Year 12 compared to 41 per cent of the non-Aboriginal population. 

In 2011-12, the Great Southern economy was worth approximately $3.9 billion, as 
measured by GRP. The regional economy has nearly doubled in size over the past 
decade. This is a notable feat for a region lacking a significant presence of mining and 
resource projects, and with few large employers. 

Primary production is the backbone of the region’s economy with broad acre cropping 
and livestock production being the dominant activities. There is increasing 
diversification into timber, horticulture, and free range livestock production. In 2011-12, 
the Great Southern contributed approximately $1.04 billion, or 14 per cent, of Western 
Australia’s total agricultural production. 

Viticulture is a mature industry in the region. Approximately 25 per cent of the State’s 
vineyards are located in the Great Southern. 

Retail trade, tourism, and construction also make significant contributions to the 
economy, though it should be noted that commercial construction has been heavily 
dependent on government investment in infrastructure; and that this investment is 
forecast to reduce substantially in 2015. 

Manufacturing in the region is largely driven by the requirements of agriculture, but 
there is industry capacity to respond to the demands of a diversifying economy. 

Regional employment has been stable over the past five years, with structural declines 
in agriculture off-set by growth in education, health, and public administration. 

In 2010-11 the region’s mean taxable income was $57,000, partly as a consequence of 
an employment profile that is concentrated in sectors that pay low wages, and are 
casual or part time. The relative dearth of secure, waged employment has encouraged 
establishment of small business, and half of the region’s small businesses operate as 
sole traders.  

Expectations that the value of mining to the region would increase were based on the 
commissioning of Grange Resources’ Southdown magnetite mine north-east of Albany 
and the Ausgold mine near Katanning. Changes to commodity prices mean it is unlikely 
that either of these projects will proceed in the short to medium term. 

A diverse natural environment and a range of internationally recognised eco-tourism 
assets underpin a resilient and dynamic tourism sector in the Great Southern. In 
addition, the region’s tourism sector is also supported by a range of major events, 
activities, and attractions, and in particular the Centenary of Anzac is forecast to 
increase visitor nights in the region. 
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In 2014 the impact of changes to apprenticeship wages through Fair Work Australia, 
and changes to government subsidies for traineeships was an impediment to 
apprenticeship and traineeship employment. 

In 2015 and 2016 WACE reforms will be implemented and the School Curriculum and 
Standards Authority estimates that 40 per cent of all secondary school students will 
require a Certificate II outcome to receive a WACE. This requirement cannot be met 
under existing publicly funded VETiS places, and the institute will work with regional 
schools to ensure that the quality of VET qualifications is not compromised by the 
reformed WACE requirements. 

 
 

 
  

Working at 
Heights is one 
of a suite of 
high-risk 
training 
courses 
provided by the 
Skills 
Development 
Centre. 
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Section 4 – Disclosures and Legal Compliance 
 
Auditor General’s Opinion 
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Financial Statements Certificate 
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Financial Statements 

Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 

 

The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

   
2014 

 
2013 

 
COST OF SERVICES 
 

Notes $ $ 

Expenses    
Employee benefits expense 6 15,966,267 17,207,574 

Supplies and services 7 5,466,438 5,285,386 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 8 833,756 873,737 

Grants and subsidies 9 - 4,345 

Cost of sales 14 208,252 264,865 

Loss on disposal of non-current assets 18 97,203 - 

Other expenses 10 2,613,701 1,539,760 

Total cost of services  25,185,617 25,175,667 
    
Income    
Revenue    

Fee for service 11 1,145,955 1,743,119 

Student fees and charges 12 2,536,902 1,929,628 

Ancillary trading 13 187,654 177,193 

Sales 14 406,807 483,037 

Commonwealth grants and contributions 15 401,161 480,005 

Interest revenue 16 258,590 275,423 

Other revenue 17 62,125 212,310 

Total revenue  4,999,194 5,300,715 

Gains    

Gain on disposal of non-current assets 18 - 4,429 

Total gains  - 4,429 

Total income other than income from State Government 4,999,194 5,305,144  
    
NET COST OF SERVICES  20,186,423 19,870,523 

INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT    

Service appropriation 19 18,196,216 19,332,803 

Resources received free of charge 19 1,776,864 559,219 

Total income from State Government  19,973,080 19,892,022 

(DEFICIT) / SURPLUS FOR PERIOD  (213,343) 21,499 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME    

Changes in asset revaluation surplus 31 192,411 348,377 

Total other comprehensive income  192,411 348,377 
    
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE  PERIOD (20,932) 369,876  
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2014 
  2014 2013 
 Notes $ $ 

ASSETS    
Current Assets    
Cash and cash equivalents 32 4,834,686 5,489,746 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 20 911,517 590,796 
Inventories 21 51,093 37,978 
Receivables 22 399,114 475,110 
Other current assets 23 1,696,955 119,474 

Total Current  Assets  7,893,365 6,713,104 

    
Non-Current Assets    
Property, plant and equipment 24 25,604,645 26,152,491 
Intangible assets 26 58,242 97,172 

Total Non-Current Assets  25,662,887 26,249,663 

    
TOTAL ASSETS  33,556,252 32,962,767 

    
LIABILITIES    
Current Liabilities    
Payables 28 643,329 704,510 
Provisions 29 2,260,632 2,305,539 
Other current liabilities 30 276,322 80,987 

Total Current Liabilities  3,180,283 3,091,036 

    
Non-Current Liabilities    
Provisions 29 673,066 670,999 

Total Non-Current Liabilities  673,066 670,999 

    
TOTAL LIABILITIES  3,853,349 3,762,035 
    
NET ASSETS  29,702,903 29,200,732 

    
Equity    
Contributed equity 31 5,886,580 5,363,477 
Reserves 31 7,931,037 7,738,626 
Accumulated surplus 31 15,885,286 16,098,629 

TOTAL  EQUITY  29,702,903 29,200,732 

    
 

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 

 
 Contributed 

Equity 
Reserves Accumulated 

surplus 
Total Equity 

 Note $ $ $ $ 
Balance at 1 January 2013 31 4,919,017 7,390,249 16,077,130 28,386,396 
Surplus - - 21,499 21,499 
Other comprehensive income  - 348,377 - 348,377 

 
Total comprehensive income for 
the period 

 - 348,377 21,499 369,876 

      
Transactions with owners in their 
capacity as owners 

     

Capital appropriations 444,460 - - 444,460 

Total  444,460 - - 444,460 
    

Balance at 31 December 2013  5,363,477 7,738,626 16,098,629 29,200,732 

      
      
      
Balance at 1 January 2014  5,363,477 7,738,626 16,098,629 29,200,732 
Surplus   (213,343) (213,343) 
Other comprehensive income   192,411  192,411 

 
Total comprehensive income for 
the period 

 - 192,411 (213,343) (20,932) 

      
Transactions with owners in their 
capacity as owners 

     

Capital appropriations 523,103 - - 523,103 

Total  523,103 - - 523,103 
    

Balance at 31 December 2014  5,886,580 7,931,037 15,885,286 29,702,903 

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 
  2014 2013 
 Notes $ $ 

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT    
Service appropriation – Department of Training & 
Workforce Development  18,370,169 19,332,803 

Capital appropriation – Department of Training & 
Workforce Development  523,103 444,460 

Net cash provided by State Government  18,893,272 19,777,263 
    
Utilised as follows:    
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES    
Payments    
Employee benefits  (16,273,248) (17,299,939) 
Supplies and services  (4,757,606) (4,955,755) 
Grants and subsidies  - (4,345) 
GST payments on purchases  (513,996) (599,952) 
GST payments to taxation authority  (199,994) (224,802) 
Other payments  (1,637,107) (1,675,098) 
Receipts    
Fee for service  1,204,220 1,718,372 
Student fees and charges  2,510,651 1,884,183 
Ancillary trading  187,654 177,193 
Commonwealth grants and contributions   401,161 480,005 
Interest received  324,772 304,361 
GST receipts from on sales  195,372 233,234 
GST receipts from taxation authority  533,600 591,522 
Sale of Goods  406,807 493,644 
Other receipts  62,125 96,185 
Net cash used in operating activities 32 (17,555,589) (18,781,192) 
    
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES    
Payments    
Purchase of non-current physical assets  (152,174) (592,787) 
Purchase of other current financial assets  (1,520,249) - 

Receipts     

Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets  400 10,342 
Net cash used in investing activities  (1,672,023) (582,445) 
    
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents  (334,340) 413,626 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period  6,080,543 5,666,917 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF 
PERIOD 32 5,746,203 6,080,543 

The Statement of Cash Flow should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 

1. Australian Accounting Standards 
(a) General  

The Institute's financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 have been prepared in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards. The term 'Australian Accounting Standards' includes 
Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standard Board (AASB). 

The Institute has adopted any applicable new and revised Australian Accounting Standards from their 
operative dates. 

(b) Early adoption of standards 

The Institute cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by 
Treasurer's Instruction (TI) 1101 'Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other 
Pronouncements'. There has been no early adoption of Australian Accounting Standards that have been 
issued or amended (but not operative) by the Institute for the annual reporting period ended 31 December 
2014. 

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 
The following accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. 
Unless otherwise stated, these policies are consistent with those adopted in the previous year. 

(a) General statement 

The Institute is a not-for-profit reporting entity that prepares general purpose financial statements in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and 
other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB as applied by the Treasurer’s instructions. Several of 
these are modified by the Treasurer’s instructions to vary application, disclosure, format and wording.  

The Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s instructions impose legislative provisions that 
govern the preparation of financial statements and take precedence over the Australian Accounting 
Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of 
the AASB. 

Where modification is required and has had a material or significant financial effect upon the reported 
results, details of that modification and the resulting financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the 
financial statements. 

(b) Basis of preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost 
convention, except for land and buildings which have been measured at fair value. 

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have been consistently 
applied throughout all periods presented unless otherwise stated. 

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars ($).  

Note 3 ‘Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies’ discloses judgements that have 
been made in the process of applying the Institute’s accounting policies resulting in the most significant 
effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements.  

Note 4 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’ discloses key assumptions made concerning the future, and 
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of 
causing a material  adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 

(c) Reporting entity 

The reporting entity is solely comprised of the Institute. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

(d) Contributed equity 

AASB Interpretation 1038 ‘Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities’ requires 
transfers in the nature of equity contributions, other than as a result of a restructure of administrative 
arrangements, to be designated by the Government (the owner) as contributions by owners (at the time of, 
or prior to transfer) before such transfers can be recognised as equity contributions. 

Capital appropriations have been designated as contributions by owners by TI 955 'Contributions by 
Owners Made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities' and have been credited directly to Contributed 
Equity. 

The transfers of net assets to/from other agencies, other than as a result of a restructure of administrative 
arrangements, are designated as contributions by owners where the transfers are non-discretionary and 
non-reciprocal. See note 31 'Equity'. 

(e) Income 

Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. 

The majority of operating revenue of the Institute represents revenue earned from student fees and 
charges, fee for service, ancillary services, trading activities and Commonwealth grants and contributions. 

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised for the major 
business activities as follows: 

Sale of goods 

Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets when the significant risks and 
rewards of ownership transfer to the purchaser and can be measured reliably. 

Provision of services 

Revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction. 

Interest 

Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues.  

Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions 

Revenue is recognised at fair value when the Institute obtains control over the assets comprising the 
contributions, usually when cash is received. 

Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners are recognised at their fair value. 
Contributions of services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined and the services 
would be purchased if not donated. 

Royalties for Regions funds are recognised as revenue at fair value in the period in which the Institute 
obtains control over the funds. The Institute obtains control of the funds at the time the funds are deposited 
into the Institute’s bank account. 

Service appropriations  

Service appropriations are recognised as revenues at fair value in the period in which the Institute gains 
control of the appropriated funds The Institute gains control of appropriated funds at the time those funds 
are deposited to the bank account.  
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

(e) Income (continued) 

State funds 

The funds received from the Department of Training and Workforce Development in respect of the delivery 
of services forming part of the Delivery Performance Agreement are included in State funds, disclosed 
under ‘Income from State Government'. They are the result of training successfully tendered for under 
competitive tendering arrangements. This revenue is recognised at nominal value in the period in which the 
Institute meets the terms of the Agreement. See note 19 'Income from State Government'. 

Gains 

Realised and unrealised gains are usually recognised on a net basis.  These include gains arising on the 
disposal of non-current assets and some revaluations of non-current assets. 

(f) Property, plant and equipment  

Capitalisation/expensing of assets 

Items of property, plant and equipment costing $5,000 or more are recognised as assets and the cost of 
utilising assets is expensed (depreciated) over their useful lives. Where applicable in accordance with TI 
1101, the capitalisation threshold has been applied to the aggregate value of a group or network of assets 
where the cost of individual item may be below the threshold but collectively the cost of the items in the 
group or network exceeds the threshold. Items of property, plant and equipment costing less than $5,000 
are immediately expensed direct to the Statement of Comprehensive Income (other than where they form 
part of a group of similar items which are significant in total). 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost.  

For items of property, plant and equipment acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is the fair value 
at the date of acquisition. 

Subsequent measurement  

Subsequent to initial recognition as an asset, the revaluation model is used for the measurement of land 
and buildings and historical cost for all other property, plant and equipment. Land and buildings are carried 
at fair value less accumulated depreciation (buildings only) and accumulated impairment losses. 

All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation 
and accumulated impairment losses. 

Where market-based evidence is available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of 
current market values determined by reference to recent market transactions.  When buildings are revalued 
by reference to recent market transactions, the accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the gross 
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount.  

In the absence of market-based evidence, fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of 
existing use.  This normally applies where buildings are specialised or where land use is restricted.  Fair 
value for existing use buildings is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the remaining future 
economic benefits embodied in the asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement cost. Where the fair value of 
buildings is determined on the depreciated replacement cost basis, the accumulated depreciation is 
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net carrying amount is restated to the 
revalued amount (net method). Fair value for restricted use land is determined by comparison with market 
evidence for land with similar approximate utility (high restricted use land) or market value of comparable 
unrestricted land. (low restricted use land). 

Land and buildings are independently valued annually by the Western Australian Land Information Authority 
(Valuation Services) and recognised annually to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially 
from the asset's fair value at the end of the reporting period. 

The most significant assumptions and judgements in estimating fair value are made in assessing whether to 
apply the existing use basis to assets and in determining estimated economic life.  
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

(f) Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

Professional judgement by the valuer is required where the evidence does not provide a clear distinction 
between market type assets and existing use assets. Refer to note 24 'Property, plant and equipment' for 
further information on revaluations. 

Derecognition 

Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, any revaluation surplus relating 
to that asset is retained in the asset revaluation surplus. 

Asset revaluation surplus 

The asset revaluation surplus is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of non-
current assets as described in note 24 ‘Property, plant and equipment’. 

Depreciation 

All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their estimated useful 
lives in a manner that reflects the consumption of their future economic benefits. 

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method, using rates which are reviewed annually. 

Estimated useful lives for each class of depreciable asset are: 

Buildings      40 years 
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers   4 to 23 years 
Plant, furniture and general equipment   4 to 28 years 
Computer equipment and communications network (a) 1 to 15 years 
(a) Includes software that is integral to the operation of related hardware. 

Works of art controlled by the Institute are classified as property, plant and equipment. These are 
anticipated to have indefinite useful lives. Their service potential has not, in any material sense, been 
consumed during the reporting period and so no depreciation has been recognised.  

Land is not depreciated.   

(g) Intangible assets 

Capitalisation/Expensing of assets 

Acquisitions of intangible assets costing $5,000 or more and internally generated intangible assets costing 
$5,000 or more, are capitalised. The cost of utilising the assets is expensed (amortised) over their useful 
life. Costs incurred below these thresholds are immediately expensed directly to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income. 

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.  For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost 
is their fair value at the date of acquisition. 

The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is calculated for the period of the expected benefit 
(estimated useful life which is reviewed annually) on the straight line basis.  All intangible assets controlled 
by the Institute have a finite useful life and zero residual value.  The expected useful lives for each class of 
intangible asset are: 

Licences   up to 10 years 
Development costs  3 to 5 years 
Software (a)   3 to 5 years 
Website costs   3 to 5 years 
(a) Software that is not integral to the operation of any related hardware. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

(g) Intangible assets (continued) 

Licences 

Licences have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses. 

Computer software 

Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is recognised as property, plant and equipment.  
Software that is not an integral part of the related hardware is recognised as an intangible asset.  Software 
costing less than $5,000 is expensed in the year of acquisition. 

Web site costs  

Website costs are charged as expenses when they are incurred unless they relate to the acquisition or 
development of an asset when they may be capitalised and amortised. Generally, costs in relation to 
feasibility studies during the planning phase of a website, and ongoing costs of maintenance during the 
operating phase are expensed. Costs incurred in building or enhancing a web site that can be reliably 
measured, are capitalised, to the extent that they represent probable future economic benefits.  

(h) Impairment of assets 

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are tested for any indication of impairment at the end 
of each reporting period.  Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated.  
Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is considered impaired and is 
written down to the recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised.   Where an asset measured 
at cost is written down to recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.  Where a 
previously revalued asset is written down to recoverable amount, the loss is recognised as a revaluation 
decrement in other comprehensive income. As the Institute is a not-for-profit entity, unless a specialised 
asset has been identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value 
less costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost. 

The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s depreciation is materially 
understated, where the replacement cost is falling or where there is a significant change in useful life. Each 
relevant class of assets is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated depreciation/amortisation 
reflects the level of consumption or expiration of asset’s future economic benefits and to evaluate any 
impairment risk from falling replacement costs.  

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for 
impairment at the end of each reporting period irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment. 

The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value less costs to sell 
and the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. Surplus assets carried at 
fair value have no risk of material impairment where fair value is determined by reference to market-based 
evidence. Where fair value is determined by reference to depreciated replacement cost, surplus assets are 
at risk of impairment and the recoverable amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost are tested for 
indications of impairment at the end of each reporting period.  

See note 27 ‘Impairment of assets’ for the outcome of impairment reviews and testing.  See note 2(n) 
'Receivables' and note 22 'Receivables' for impairment of receivables. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

(i) Non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale 

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale are recognised at the lower of carrying amount and 
fair value less costs to sell, and are disclosed separately from other assets in the Statement of Financial 
Position.  Assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised. 

(j) Financial instruments 

In addition to cash and bank overdraft, the Institute has two categories of financial instruments: 

Loans and receivables; and 
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. 

These have been disaggregated into the following classes: 

Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables 
Other financial assets 

Financial liabilities 

Payables 
Amounts repayable to Department of Training and Workforce Development (“DTWD’) 

Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value which normally equates to the 
transaction cost or the face value. Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. 

The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost or the face value because 
there is no interest rate applicable and subsequent measurement is not required as the effect of discounting 
is not material. 

(k) Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents include restricted cash and 
cash equivalents. These are comprised of cash on hand and short-term deposits with original maturities of 
three months or less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to 
insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. 

(l) Accrued salaries 

Accrued salaries (see note 28 'Payables') represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the 
financial year, as the end of the last pay period for that financial year does not coincide with the end of the 
financial year.  Accrued salaries are settled within a fortnight of the financial year end. The Institute 
considers the carrying amount of accrued salaries to be equivalent to its fair value. 

The accrued salaries suspense account (see note 20 ‘Restricted cash and cash equivalents’) consists of 
amounts paid annually into a suspense account over a period of ten financial years to largely meet the 
additional cash outlay in each eleventh year when 27 pay days occur instead of the normal 26. No interest 
is received on this account. 

(m) Inventories 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Costs are assigned by the method 
most appropriate to each particular class of inventory, with the majority being measured on a first in first out 
basis. 

Inventories not held for resale are measured at cost unless they are no longer required, in which case they 
are measured at net realisable value.  See note 21 'Inventories' 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

(n) Receivables 

Receivables are recognised at original invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts (i.e. 
impairment).  The collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables 
identified as uncollectible are written-off against the allowance account.  The allowance for uncollectible 
amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when there is objective evidence that the Institute will not be able to 
collect the debts. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30 days.  
See note 2(j) ‘Financial instruments’ and note 22 ‘Receivables’. 

(o) Payables 

Payables are recognised when the Institute becomes obliged to make future payments as a result of a 
purchase of assets or services. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as settlement is generally 
within 30 days.  See note 2(j) ‘Financial instruments’ and note 28 'Payables'. 

(p) Provisions 

Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and are recognised where there is a present legal or 
constructive obligation as a result of a past event and when the outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits is probable and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are 
reviewed at the end of each reporting period. See note 29 ‘Provisions’.  

     Provisions - employee benefits 
All annual leave and long service leave provisions are in respect of employees’ services up to the end of 
the reporting period. 

i. Annual leave 

Annual leave is expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the reporting period and 
is therefore considered to be a ‘short-term employee benefit’. The annual leave liability is recognised 
and measured at the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled. 

The provision for annual leave is classified as a current liability as the Institute does not have an 
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting 
period. 

ii. Long service leave 

Long service leave that is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the 
reporting period is recognised and measured at the present value of amounts expected to be paid when 
the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement. 

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and salary 
levels including non-salary components such as employer superannuation contributions, as well as the 
experience of employee departures and periods of service.  The expected future payments are 
discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with 
terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

(p) Provisions (continued) 

Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Institute does not 
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the 
reporting period.  Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-
current liabilities because the Institute has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability 
until the employee has completed the requisite years of service. 

Purchased leave 

The provision for purchased leave relates to Public Service employees who have entered into an 
agreement to self-fund up to an additional 10 weeks leave per calendar year. The provision recognises 
the value of salary set aside for employees and is measured at the undiscounted amounts expected to 
be paid when the liabilities are settled. 

iii. Superannuation 

The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) and other funds administer public sector 
superannuation arrangements in Western Australia in accordance with legislative requirements. 
Eligibility criteria for membership in particular schemes for public sector employees vary according to 
commencement and implementation dates. 

Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme closed to new 
members since 1987, or the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a defined benefit lump sum 
scheme closed to new members since 1995. 

Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not members of either the 
Pension Scheme or the GSS became non-contributory members of the West State Superannuation 
Scheme (WSS).  
 

Employees commencing employment on or after 16 April 2007 became members of the GESB Super 
Scheme (GESBS). From 30 March 2012, existing members of the WSS or GESBS and new employees 
have been able to choose their preferred superannuation fund provider. The Institute makes 
contributions to GESB or other funds providers on behalf of employees in compliance with the 
Commonwealth Government’s Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992.  Contributions to 
these accumulation schemes extinguish the Institute’s liability for superannuation charges in respect of 
employees who are not members of the Pension Scheme or GSS.  

The GSS is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and whole-of-government 
reporting.  However, it is a defined contribution plan for Institute purposes because the concurrent 
contributions (defined contributions) made by the Institute to GESB extinguishes the Institute’s 
obligations to the related superannuation liability. 

The Institute has no liabilities under the Pension Scheme or the GSS. The liabilities for the unfunded 
Pension Scheme and the unfunded GSS transfer benefits attributable to members who transferred from 
the Pension Scheme, are assumed by the Treasurer.  All other GSS obligations are funded by 
concurrent contributions made by the Institute to the GESB.  

The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of the Pension Scheme and GSS, and is recouped 
from the Treasurer for the employer's share. See also note 2(q) 'Superannuation expense'. 

     Provisions - other 

iv. Employment on-costs 

Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not employee benefits and are 
recognised separately as liabilities and expenses when the employment to which they relate has 
occurred.  Employment on-costs are included as part of 'Other expenses' and are not included as part of 
the Institute's 'Employee benefits expense’. The related liability is included in 'Employment on-costs 
provision'. (See note 10 'Other expenses' and note 29 'Provisions'.) 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

(q) Superannuation expense 

The superannuation expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprises employer contributions 
paid to the GSS (concurrent contributions), the West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS), the GESB 
Super Scheme (GESBS) and other superannuation funds.  

(r) Assets and services received free of charge or for nominal cost 

Assets or services received free of charge or for nominal cost that the Institute would otherwise purchase if 
not donated, are recognised as income at the fair value of the assets or services where they can be reliably 
measured. A corresponding expense is recognised for services received.  Receipts of assets are 
recognised in the Statement of Financial Position. 

Assets or services received from other State Government agencies are separately disclosed under Income 
from State Government in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

(s) Comparative figures 

Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the figures presented in the 
current financial year. 

 

3. Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements about the application of 
accounting policies that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.  
The Institute evaluates these judgements regularly. 

Operating Lease Commitments 

The Institute has entered into commercial leases and has determined that the lessor retains substantially all 
the significant risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property. Accordingly, the lease has been 
classified as an operating lease.  

 

4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

Key estimates and assumptions concerning the future are based on historical experience and various other 
factors that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year. 

v. Long Service Leave 

Several estimations and assumptions in calculating the Institute’s long service leave provision include 
expected future salary rates, discount rates, employee retention rates and expected future payments.  
Changes in these estimations and assumptions may impact on the carrying amount of the long service 
leave provision. 

 

5 Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates 

Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard 

The Authority has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective for annual reporting 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 that impacted on the Authority. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

5 Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates (continued) 

 Int 21 Levies 

This Interpretation clarifies the circumstances under which a liability to pay 
a government levy imposed should be recognised.  There is no financial 
impact for the Authority at reporting date. 

 AASB 1031 Materiality 

This Standard supersedes AASB 1031 (February 2010), removing 
Australian guidance on materiality not available in IFRSs and refers to 
guidance on materiality in other Australian pronouncements.  There is no 
financial impact. 

 AASB 2012-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Offsetting Financial 
Assets and Financial Liabilities [AASB 132] 

This Standard adds application guidance to AASB 132 to address 
inconsistencies identified in applying some of the offsetting criteria, 
including clarifying the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right 
of set-off” and that some gross settlement systems may be considered 
equivalent to net settlement.  There is no financial impact. 

 AASB 2013-3 Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-
Financial Assets.   

This Standard introduces editorial and disclosure changes.  There is no 
financial impact. 

 AASB 2013-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Australian 
Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Profit Entities – Control and 
Structured Entities [AASB 10, 12 & 1049]. 

The amendments, issued in October 2013, provide significant guidance in 
determining whether a not-for-profit entity controls another entity when 
financial returns are not a key attribute of the investor’s relationship.  The 
Standard has no financial impact in its own right, rather the impact results 
from the adoption of the amended AASB 10. 

 AASB 2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Conceptual Framework, 
Materiality and Financial Instruments. 

This omnibus Standard makes amendments to other Standards arising 
from the deletion of references to AASB 1031 in other Standards for 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 (Part B).  Part B of the 
Standard has no financial impact. 

 

 

Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative 

The Authority cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by 
TI 1101 Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements.  Consequently, the 
Authority has not applied early any of the following Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued 
that may impact the Authority.  Where applicable, the Authority plans to apply these Australian Accounting 
Standards from their application date. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

5 Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates (continued) 

  Operative for 
reporting 
periods 

beginning 
on/after 

 AASB 9 Financial Instruments 

This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, introducing 
a number of changes to accounting treatments. 

The mandatory application date of this Standard is 
currently 1 January 2018 after being amended by 
AASB 2012-6, AASB 2013-9, and, AASB 2014-1 
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards.  The 
Authority has not yet determined the application or the 
potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2018 

 AASB 1055 Budgetary Reporting 

This Standard requires specific budgetary disclosures in 
the general purpose financial statements of not-for-profit 
entities within the General Government Sector. The 
Authority will be required to disclose additional 
budgetary information and explanations of major 
variances between actual and budgeted amounts, 
though there is no financial impact. 

         1 Jul 2014 

 AASB 2009-11 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AASB 2010-7 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 
arising from AASB 9 [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 
112, 118, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 139, 1023 & 
1038 and Int 10 & 12] 

The mandatory application date of this Standard is 
currently 1 January 2018 after being amended by 
AASB 2012-6 and AASB 2014-1 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting Standards. 

 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 
arising from AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 
7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 
132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 
& 127] 

This Standard makes consequential amendments to 
other Australian Accounting Standards and 
Interpretations as a result of issuing AASB 9 in 
December 2010. 

The mandatory application date of this Standard has 
been amended by AASB 2012-6 and AASB 2014-1 to 
1 January 2018.  The Authority has not yet determined 
the application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1 Jan 2018 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates (continued) 

 AASB 2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards   
Conceptual Framework, Materiality and Financial 
Instruments. 

Part C of this omnibus Standard defers the application 
of AASB 9 to 1 January 2017 (Part C).  The application 
date of AASB 9 was subsequently deferred to 
1 January 2018 by AASB 2014-1.  The Authority has 
not yet determined the application or the potential 
impact of AASB 9. 

     1 Jan 2017 

 AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards  

  Part A changes consist primarily of clarifications to 
Accounting Standards and have no financial impact for 
the Authority. 

Part B has no financial impact as the Authority 
contributes to schemes that are either defined 
contribution plans, or deemed to be defined contribution 
plans. 

Part C has no financial impact as the Standard removes 
references to AASB 1031 Materiality from a number of 
Accounting Standards. 

             1 Jul 2014 

 

             1 Jul 2014 

 

 

              1 Jul 2014 

 

  Part D has no financial impact as the Authority is not 
required to apply AASB 14 Regulatory Deferral 
Accounts. 

           1 Jan 2016 

  Part E makes amendments to AASB 9 and 
consequential amendments to other Standards.  It has 
not yet been assessed by the Authority to determine the 
application or potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2015 

1 Jan 2018 

 AASB 2014-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint 
Operations [AASB 1 & 11] 

The Authority establishes Joint Operations in pursuit of 
its objectives and does not routinely acquire interests in 
Joint Operations.  Therefore, there is no financial impact 
on application of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2016 

 AASB 2014-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and 
Amortisation [AASB 116 & 138] 

The adoption of the new Standard has no financial 
impact for the Model Authority as depreciation and 
amortisation is not determined by reference to revenue 
generation, but by reference to consumption of future 
economic benefits. 

1 Jan 2016 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

6.  Employee Benefits Expense 
 2014 2013 
 $ $ 
Wages and salaries (a) 14,169,798 15,351,810 
Voluntary Severance Scheme payments (b) 398,087 413,714 
Superannuation - defined contribution plans (c) 1,398,382 1,442,050 

 15,966,267 17,207,574 
(a) Includes the value of the fringe benefit to the employee plus the fringe benefits tax component, 

leave entitlements including superannuation contribution component. 
 
(b) During 2014 three employees (2013: 3) chose to participate in a voluntary severance scheme. 

 
(c) Defined contribution plans include West State, and Gold State and GESBS and other eligible 

funds. 
Employment on-costs such as workers' compensation insurance are included at note 10 'Other 
expenses'. Employment on-costs liability is included at note 29 'Provisions'. 

7. Supplies and Services 
 2014 2013 
 $ $ 
Consumables and minor equipment 697,964 703,266 
Communication expenses  121,048 113,091 
Utilities expenses  366,992 353,453 
Consultancies and contracted services  2,060,916 2,427,217 
Minor works  1,189,011 594,405 
Repairs and maintenance  75,470 89,938 
Operating lease and hire charges  299,163 284,752 
Travel and passenger transport   130,616 146,069 
Advertising and public relations  103,110 85,177 
Supplies and services – other 301,460 390,022 
Supplies and Services – PD staff activities 120,688 97,996 
 5,466,438 5,285,386 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

8.  Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 

 2014 2013 
Depreciation $ $ 
Buildings 564,626 556,711 
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers 27,213 48,315 
Plant, furniture and general equipment 81,480 103,085 
Computer equipment and communication network 114,360 127,876 
Total Depreciation 787,679 835,987 
Amortisation   
Software 46,077 37,750 

Total Amortisation 46,077 37,750 
Total depreciation and amortisation 833,756 873,737 

 
9.  Grants and Subsidies 

 2014 2013 
Recurrent $ $ 
Payments to non-TAFE providers for VET service delivery - 273 
Other - 4,072 
 - 4,345 

 
10.  Other Expenses 

 2014 2013 
 $ $ 
Building maintenance (a) 1,482,711 265,777 
Doubtful debts expense 11,905 6,826 
Employment on-costs (b) 1,082,293 1,117,500 
Student Prizes & Awards 27,590 24,936 
Losses and write-offs  8,102 122,701 
Donations 1,100 1,600 
Other - 420 
Total 2,613,701 1,539,760 

(a) Building maintenance includes an amount of $1,215,492 for remedial capital work undertaken on the Institute’s campuses 
by DTWD.  (see note 19 Income from State Government) 

(b) Includes workers' compensation insurance and other employment on-costs. The on-costs liability associated with the 
recognition of annual and long service leave liability is included at note 29 'Provisions'.  Superannuation contributions 
accrued as part of the provision for leave are employee benefits and are not included in employment on-costs. 

 

11.  Fee for Service 

 2014 2013 
 $ $ 
Fee for service – general 830,003 1,321,514 
Fee for service – Department of Training and Workforce Development 167,124 273,435 
Fee for service – Government (other than Department of Training 

    and Workforce Development) - 14,943 

International division Fees 148,828 133,227 

 1,145,955 1,743,119 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

12.  Student Fees and Charges 

 
2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 
Tuition fees 1,953,045 1,152,305 
Resource fees 438,016 543,865 
Other Institute fees 145,841 233,458 

 2,536,902 1,929,628 

 
13.  Ancillary Trading 

 2014 2013 
 $ $ 

Live works (not a trading activity) 72,288 95,891 
Other ancillary revenue 115,366 81,302 

Total 187,654 177,193 
 
14.  Trading Profit 

 2014 2013 

 $ $ 
(a) Bookshop   
Sales 88,697 129,525 
Cost of sales:   
Opening inventory (35,756) (45,397) 
Purchases (71,267) (102,317) 

Goods available for sale (107,023) (147,714) 
Closing inventory  48,120 35,756 
Cost of goods sold (58,903) (111,958) 

Trading (Loss) / Profit - Bookshop 29,794 17,567 

   
Note: the bookshop sales  

   
(b) Cafeteria   
Sales 313,332 351,108 
Cost of sales:   
Opening inventory (2,222) (3,188) 
Purchases (150,100) (151,941) 

Goods available for sale (152,322) (155,129) 
Closing inventory  2,972 2,222 
Cost of goods sold (149,350) (152,907) 

Trading Profit / (Loss) - Bookshop 163,982 198,201 

Other Sales 4,778 2,404 

See note 2(m) 'Inventories' and note 21 'Inventories'. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

15.  Commonwealth Grants and Contributions 
 2014 2013 
 $ $ 

Commonwealth specific purpose grants and contributions 401,161 480,005 

 401,161 480,005 
 
16.  Interest Revenue 

 2014 2013 
 $ $ 

Interest Revenue 258,590 275,423 
Total 258,590 275,423 

 
17.  Other Revenue 

 2014 2013 
 $ $ 

Rental and facilities fees 7,814 28,829 
Other direct grants and subsidy revenue (a) - 23,209 
Sponsorship and donations revenue  14,366 13,960 
Insurance recoveries 608 115,981 
Miscellaneous revenue  39,337 30,331 

Total 62,125 212,310 
(a) Refund of overpayment of fees $- (2013:$23,209) 

 
18.  Net gain / (loss) on disposal of non-current assets 

 2014 2013 
 $ $ 

Costs of disposal of non-current assets   
Buildings (71,635) (5,913) 
Plant, furniture and general equipment (25,968) - 
Total cost of disposal of non-current assets (97,603) (5,913) 

   
Proceeds from Disposal of Non-Current Assets   
Buildings - 464 
Plant, furniture and general equipment - 9,878 
Computer equipment and communications network 400 - 

Total proceeds from disposal of non-current assets 400 10,342 

Net gain / (loss) (97,203) 4,429 

   
See note 2(i) 'Non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale’ and note 24 ‘Property, plant and 
equipment’.  
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

19.  Income from State Government 

 
Resources received free of charge determined on the basis of the following  
estimates provided by agencies (b): 
 
Department of Training and Workforce Development   

- Corporate systems support 533,555 350,289 

- Human resources, industrial relations support 27,818 12,353 

- Other (c) 1,215,491 51,869 

Total resources received free of charge 1,776,864 414,511 

Department of Education   
- Human resources, industrial relations support - 144,708 

 - 144,708 

Total resources received free of charge 1,776,864 559,219 

Total Income from State Government 19,973,080 19,892,022 
 

(a) Service appropriations fund the net cost of services delivered. 

(b) Discretionary transfers of assets (including grants) and liabilities between State Government agencies are 
reported under Income from State Government.  Transfers of assets and liabilities in relation to a restructure of 
administrative arrangements are recognised as distribution to owners by the transferor and contribution by owners 
by the transferee under AASB 1004 in respect of net assets transferred. Other non-discretionary non-reciprocal 
transfers of assets and liabilities designated as contributions by owners under TI 955 are also recognised directly 
to equity. 

(c) Other resources provided by DTWD during 2014 were remedial capital works on Institute campuses. Other 
resources provided by DTWD during 2013 related to services and copyright licences provided to the Institute. 

 
20.  Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

Current 2014 2013 

 $ $ 
Specific capital works projects and equipment (a)  682,000 8,689 
Allowance for 27th Pay (b) - 561,165 
Allowance for deferred salaries (c) 81,624 12,566 
Specific donations (d) 5,940 8,376 
State grants refundable (e) 141,953 - 

 911,517 590,796 

   
 2014 2013 
Appropriation received during the year (a) $ $ 
Department of Training and Workforce Development   
Delivery and Performance Agreement (DPA) 17,253,205 18,867,714 
Other recurrent funds 943,011 465,089 
Total funds from Dep of Training and Workforce Development 18,196,216 19,332,803 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

20. Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued) 
(a) Relates to the refurbishment of the Learning Centre, the construction of a covered walkway and the purchase of computer 

equipment. (2013: Relates to retention monies withheld upon completion of the Skills Development Shed project.) 
(b) Amount was held in 2013 to meet 27 pays in 2014 being one additional pay period more than the normal 26 pays per 

annum. There was no liability as at 31 December 2014 as the 27th pay was paid on 31st December 2014 and no liability had 
accrued as at 31 December 2014. 

(c) Amount held to meet salaries due to staff, who have elected to defer payment to purchase additional leave at a later time. 
(d) Funds for Mick Young Trust $- (2013: $64), Denmark Music Foundation $5,593 (2013: $8,311), the Jack Family Trust $227 

(2013: $-) and an anonymous donor $121 (2013: $-). 
(e) An amount is held as fees payable to the DTWD for excess delivery of qualifications as ‘recognition of prior learning’. 

21.  Inventories 
 2014 2013 
Current $ $ 
Inventories held for resale:   
 Bookshop (at cost) 48,120 35,756 
 Cafeteria (as cost) 2,973 2,222 

Total 51,093 37,978 

See also note 2(m) ‘Inventories’ and note 14 ‘Trading profit/(loss)’ 

22.  Receivables 

 2014 2013 

 $ $ 
Current   
Receivables – trade 213,160 306,844 
Receivables – students 51,387 6,011 
Receivables - other 45,777 - 
Accrued income  30,520 96,702 
Allowance for impairment of receivables (26,034) (14,129) 
GST receivable 84,304 79,682 

Total Current  399,114 475,110 
 
Reconciliation of changes in the allowance for impairment of 
receivables: 

  

Balance at start of period 14,129 7,303 
Doubtful debts expense  11,905 6,826 
Amounts written off during the period - - 

Balance at End of Period 26,034 14,129 
Receivables – other: Funds receivable from Commonwealth Government under the VET Fee Help Scheme of $44,341 
(2013 $-) and funds receivable from Mick Young Trust of $1,436 (2013 $-). 
The Institute does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements as security for receivables. 
See also note 2(n) ‘Receivables’ and note 38 ‘Financial instruments’. 

23. Other current assets  

 2014 2013 
Current $ $ 

Prepayments 170,730 119,474 

Other financial assets (a) 1,520,249 - 

Other current assets (b) 5,976 - 

 1,696,955 119,474 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 
 
23. Other current assets (continued) 
 

(a) Other financial assets consist of a term deposits with terms exceeding 3 months and are therefore classified as 
“Other financial assets”.  All term deposits were classified as “cash and cash equivalents” for 2013 with terms less 
than or equal to 3 months. 

(b) Refundable deposits for venue hire (2013: nil) 
 
24.  Property, Plant and Equipment 

 2014 2013 
 $ $ 
Land   
At fair value (a) 2,560,000 2,610,000 
Accumulated impairment losses - - 

 2,560,000 2,610,000 

Buildings   
At fair value (a) 22,188,900 22,546,007 
Accumulated depreciation  - - 

 22,188,900 22,546,007 

Capital Works in Progress   
Construction costs - 10,426 
Computer upgrade - 10,598 

 - 21,024 

Motor Vehicles, Caravans and Trailers   
At cost 555,082 549,656 
Accumulated depreciation (401,867) (374,653) 

 153,215 175,003 

Plant, Furniture and General Equipment   
At cost 1,366,874 1,343,331 
Accumulated depreciation (959,206) (911,518) 

 407,668 431,813 

Computer Equipment and Communication Network   
At cost 1,036,074 1,048,168 
Accumulated depreciation (741,212) (679,524) 

 294,862 368,644 

   

 
25,604,645 26,152,491 

 
(a) Land and buildings were revalued as at 1 July 2014 by the Western Australian Land Information Authority 

(Valuation Services). The valuations were performed during the year ended 31 December 2014 and recognised at 
31 December 2014. In undertaking the revaluation, fair value was determined by reference to market values for 
land: $370,000 (2013: $420,000) and buildings: $250,000 (2013: nil). For the remaining balance, fair value of 
buildings was determined on the basis of depreciated replacement cost and fair value of land was determined on 
the basis of comparison with market evidence for land with low level utility (high restricted use land). See note 2(f) 
'Property, plant and equipment'. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

24.  Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the 
reporting period are set out below: 

2014 Land Buildings Capital 
works in 
progress 

Motor 
vehicles, 
caravans 

and 
trailers 

Plant, 
furniture 

and 
general 

equipment 

Computer 
equipment and 
communication 

network 

Total 

Carrying 
amount at 
start of year 

2,610,000 22,546,007 21,024 175,003 431,813 368,644 26,152,491 

Additions - 26,317  5,426 83,302 30,668 145,713 

Transfers - 10,426 (20,336) - - 9,910 - 

Disposals - (71,635) - - (25,968) - (97,603) 

Other 
movements   (688)    (688) 

Revaluation 
Increments/ 
(decrements) 

(50,000) 242,411 - - - - 192,411 

Depreciation 
expense - (564,626) - (27,213) (81,480) (114,360) (787,679) 

Carrying 
amount at 
end of year 

2,560,000 22,188,900 - 153,216 407,667 294,862 25,604,645 

 
2013 Land Buildings Capital 

works in 
progress 

Motor 
vehicles, 
caravans 

and 
trailers 

Plant, 
furniture 

and 
general 

equipment 

Computer 
equipment and 
communication 

network 

Total 

Carrying 
amount at 
start of year 

2,690,000 22,373,400 478,673 223,318 433,240 108,519 26,307,150 

Additions - - 21,024 - 89,958 399,701 510,683 

Transfers - 425,854 (425,854) - 11,700 (11,700) - 

Disposals - (125,000) - - - - (125,000) 

Other 
movements   (52,819)    (52,819) 

Revaluation 
Increments/ 
(decrements) 

(80,000) 428,464 - - - - 348,464 

Depreciation 
expense - (556,711) - (48,315) (103,085) (127,876) (835,987) 

Carrying 
amount at 
end of year 

2,610,000 22,546,007 21,024 175,003 431,813 368,644 26,152,491 

 

(a) The Department of Lands is the only agency with the power to sell Crown land. The land is transferred to the Department 
of Lands for sale and the Authority accounts for the transfer as a distribution to owner. 

(b) Recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Where an asset measured at cost is written down to recoverable 
amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. Where a previously revalued asset is written down to 
recoverable amount, the loss is recognised as a revaluation decrement in other comprehensive income. 

Information on fair value measurements is provided in Note 25  Fair Value Measurements..  
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

25. Fair Value Measurements 
 

Assets measured at fair value: Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value 
at end of 

period 

2014 $ $ $ $ 

Land (note 24) - 370,000 2,190,000 2,560,000 

Buildings (note 24) - 250,000 21,938,900 22,188,900 

Total - 620,000 24,128,900 24,748,900 
     

Assets measured at fair value: Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value 
at end of 

period 

2013 $ $ $ $ 

Land (note 24) - 420,000 2,190,000 2,610,000 

Buildings (note 24) - - 22,546,007 22,546,007 

Total - 420,000 24,736,007 25,156,007 
 

Valuation techniques to derive level 2 fair values 

Level 2 fair values of Non-current assets comprising Land and Buildings (residential accommodation) are derived 
using the market approach.  Market evidence of sales prices of comparable land and buildings (residential 
accommodation) in close proximity is used to determine price per square metre. 

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) 

2014   Land Buildings 

   $ $ 

Fair Value at start of period 2,190,000 22,546,007 

Additions - 36,743 

Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in Profit or Loss - - 

Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in Other Comprehensive 
Income 

- 236,161 

Transfers (to)/from Level 2 - (250,000) 

Disposals - (71,635) 

Depreciation Expense - (558,376) 

Fair Value at end of period 2,190,000 21,938,900 

Total losses for the period included in profit or loss, under ‘Loss on 
disposal of non-current assets’ - - 

Change in unrealised gains or losses for the period included in profit or 
loss for assets held at the end of the reporting period - - 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

25. Fair Value Measurements (continued) 
 
 

2013   Land Buildings 

   $ $ 

Fair Value at start of period 2,250,000 22,373,400 

Additions - 425,854 

Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in Profit or Loss - - 

Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in Other Comprehensive 
Income 

(60,000) 428,464 

Transfers (to)/from Level 2 - - 

Disposals - (125,000) 

Depreciation Expense - (556,711) 

Fair Value at end of period 2,190,000 22,546,007 

Total gains for the period included in profit or loss, under ‘Loss on disposal of 
non-current assets’ 

- - 

Change in unrealised gains or losses for the period included in profit or loss 
for assets held at the end of the reporting period 

- - 

 
Valuation processes 
 
There were no changes in valuation techniques during the period. 
Transfers in and out of a fair value level are recognised on the date of the event or change in circumstances that 
caused the transfer. Transfers are generally limited to assets newly classified as non-current assets held for sale 
as Treasurer's instructions require valuations of land and buildings to be categorised within Level 3 where the 
valuations utilise significant Level 3 inputs on a recurring basis. 

Fair value for existing use specialised building is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the remaining 
future economic benefits embodied in the asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement cost. Depreciated replacement 
cost is the current replacement cost of an asset less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such 
cost to reflect the already consumed economic benefit, expired economic benefit or obsolescence of the asset. 
Determination of the current replacement cost of such assets held by the Institute is calculated by reference to 
gross project size specifications and the historical cost, adjusted by relevant indices. 

Fair value for restricted use land is based on market value, by either using market evidence of sales of 
comparable land that is unrestricted (low restricted use land), or, comparison with market evidence for land with 
low level utility (high restricted use land). 

Significant Level 3 inputs used by the Institute are derived and evaluated as follows: 

Depreciated replacement cost of building per square metre floor area (m2) 
The costs of construction of specialised buildings are extracted from financial records of the Institute, then 
indexed by movements in construction costs by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation 
Services).  Depreciation is then calculated on the estimated replacement cost of buildings. 

Consumed economic benefit/obsolescence of asset 
These are estimated by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services). 

Sales prices of appropriate land of low utility 
These are selected by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services). 

Selection of land with similar approximate utility 
Fair value for land with low level utility (high restricted use) is determined by comparison with market evidence for 
land with similar approximate utility. 

Relevant comparators of land with similar approximate utility are selected by the Western Australian Land 
Information Authority (Valuation Services). 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

25. Fair Value Measurements (continued) 
 

Information about significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) in fair value measurements 

Description and fair 
value as at 31 

December 2014 

Valuation 
technique(s) 

Unobservable 
inputs 

Range of 
unobservable 

inputs 
(probability – 

weighted 
average) 

2014 

Range of 
unobservable 

inputs 
(probability – 

weighted 
average) 

2013 

Relationship 
of 

unobservable 
inputs to fair 

value 

Land 
($2,190,000) 

Market 
Approach 

Selection of 
land with 
similar 
approximate 
utility 

$4.04 - $23.16 / 
sq mtr  
($4.35 / sq mtr) 

$4.04 - $23.16 
/ sq mtr 
($4.35 / sq 
mtr) 

Higher value of 
similar land 
increases 
estimated fair 
value. 

Buildings 
($21,938,900) 

Depreciated 
Replacement 
Cost 

Consumed 
economic 
benefit / 
obsolescence 
of asset 

2% per year 
(2% per year) 

2% per year 
(2% per year) 

Greater 
consumption of 
economic 
benefit or 
increased 
obsolescence 
lowers fair 
value. 

 

Reconciliations of the opening and closing balances are provided in Notes 24. 

Basis of Valuation 

In the absence of market-based evidence due to the specialised nature of the assets, non-financial assets 
are valued at Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy on an existing use basis. The existing use basis recognises 
that restrictions or limitations have been placed on their use and disposal when they are not determined to 
be surplus to requirements. These restrictions are imposed by virtue of the assets being held to deliver a 
specific community service and the Institute's enabling legislation. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

26.  Intangible Assets 

 2014 2013 
 $ $ 
Computer software 

  At cost 142,069 134,922 
Accumulated amortisation (83,827) (37,750) 

Accumulated impairment losses - - 

 
58,242 97,172 

Reconciliation  
 

Computer software  
 

Carrying amount at start of period 97,172 - 

Additions 7,147 134,922 
Classified as held for sale - - 

Revaluation increments - - 

Impairment losses recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income - - 

Impairment losses reversed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income - - 

Amortisation expense (46,077) (37,750) 

Carrying amount at end of period 58,242 97,172 
 

 

27.  Impairment of Assets 

There were no indications of impairment of property plant and equipment as at 31 December 2014. 
 
The Institute held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during the reporting period.  
At the end of the reporting period there were no intangible assets not yet available for use. 
 
All surplus assets as at 31 December 2014 have either been classified as assets held for sale or written off. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

28.  Payables 

 2014 2013 
Current $ $ 
Trade Payables 2,111 7,971 
GST and FBT Payable 39,835 20,231 
Accrued Expenses 397,505 244,185 
Accrued Salaries and Wages 198,519 432,123 
Paid Parental Leave 5,359 - 

Total 643,329 704,510 
 
29.  Provisions 

 2014 2013 
Current $ $ 

Employee benefits provision   

Annual leave (a) 739,212 708,884 

Long service leave (b) 1,307,544 1,447,766 

Deferred Salary Scheme (c) 81,624 12,567 

 2,128,380 2,169,217 

Other provisions   

Employment on-costs (d) 132,252 136,322 

Total current 2,260,632 2,305,539 
 

 2014 2013 
Non-current $ $ 

Employee benefits provision   

Long service leave (b) 633,030 631,145 

 633,030 631,145 

Other provisions   

Employment on-costs(d) 40,036 39,854 
Total non-current 673,066 670,999 

 

 

 
(a) Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer 

settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that 
actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows: 

 
2014 2013 

 
$ $ 

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 675,562 663,538 

More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period 63,650 45,346 

 739,212 708,884 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

29.  Provisions (continued) 

(b) Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to 
defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Assessments indicate 
that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows: 

 
2014 2013 

 
$ $ 

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 592,061 655,682 

More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period 1,348,513 1,423,229 

 1,940,574 2,078,911 

(c) Deferred salary scheme liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional 
right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Actual 
settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows: 

 
2014 2013 

 
$ $ 

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period - - 

More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period 81,624 12,567 

 81,624 12,567 

(d) The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment 
on-costs including workers' compensation insurance.  The provision is the present value of 
expected future payments.  The associated expense, apart from the unwinding of the discount 
(finance cost), is disclosed in note 10 'Other expenses'. 

 

Movements in other provisions  

Movements in each class of provisions during the financial year, other than employee benefits, are set 
out below. 

 
2014 2013 

Employment on-cost provision $ $ 

Carrying amount at start of period 176,176 181,737 

Additional provisions recognised (3,888) - 

Payments/other sacrifices of economic benefits - (5,561) 

Carrying amount at end of period 172,288 176,176 
 
30.  Other Liabilities 

 2014 2013 
Current $ $ 
Income received in advance (a) 60,430 47,637 

Grants and advances (b) 35,997 24,975 

Monies held on trust (c) 5,941 8,375 

Amounts repayable to DTWD (d) 173,954 - 

Total current liabilities 276,322 80,987 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

30.  Other Liabilities (continued) 2014 2013 
 $ $ 
(a) Income received in advance   

Student fees and charges 24,433 47,637 

Provision of Pilot of Drought Reform Measure in WA – Building 
Farm Business Capacity 17,182 - 

Coastwest Program 7,992 - 

Shearing & Wool Handler Training and consultancy services 10,823 - 

(b) Grants and advances   

Fee for Service course fees 35,997 24,975 

(c) Monies held on trust   

Mick Young Trust - 64 

Jack Family Trust 227 - 

Denmark Music Foundation 5,593 8,311 

Anonymous benefactor 121 - 

(d) Amounts payable to DTWD   

Refund of payments under the DPA 141,953 - 

Unspent reimbursement for the purchase of equipment 32,001 - 

 276,322 80,987 

31. Equity 

Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of the Institute. The Government holds the 
equity interest in the net assets of the Institute. The Government holds the equity interest in the 
Institute on behalf of the community.  The asset revaluation surplus represents that portion of equity 
resulting from the revaluation of non-current assets. 
 2014 2013 

 $ $ 

Contributed Equity   

Balance at start of period 5,363,477 4,919,017 

Contributions by owners   

Capital appropriation  523,103 444,460 

Balance at end of period 5,886,580 5,363,477 
   

Reserves   

Asset revaluation surplus 
  

Balance at start of period 7,738,626 7,390,249 

Buildings 242,411 428,377 

Land (50,000) (80,000) 

Balance at end of period 7,931,037 7,738,626 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

31. Equity (continued) 

Accumulated surplus 
  

Balance at start of period 16,098,629 16,077,130 

Result for the period (213,343) 21,499 
Balance at end of period 15,885,286 16,098,629 
   

Total Equity at the end of the period 29,702,903 29,200,732 

 
32. Notes on the Statements of Cash Flows 
 

Reconciliation of cash 
Cash at the end of the financial year, as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related 
items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows: 

(a) This is the net GST paid/received, i.e. cash transactions 
(b) This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables 
(c)  Note that the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) receivable/payable in respect of GST and the 

 receivable/payable in respect of the sale/purchase of non-current assets are not included as they are not 
reconciling items.  

 2014 2013 

 $ $ 

Cash and cash equivalents 4,834,686 5,489,746 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents (refer to note 20 
'Restricted cash and cash equivalents') 911,517 590,796 

 5,746,203 6,080,543 

Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash 
flows provided by/(used in) Operating activities   

Net cost of services (20,186,423) (19,870,523) 
Non-cash items:   
Depreciation and amortisation expense 833,757 873,737 
Doubtful debts expense 11,905 6,826 
Resources received free of charge 1,776,864 559,219 
Net (gain)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 97,203 114,571 
(lncrease)/decrease in assets:   
Current receivables (c) (3,443) (43,111) 
Current inventories (13,116) 10,606 
Prepayments (51,257) 27,670 
lncrease/(decrease) in liabilities   
Current payables (c) (80,786) (281,581) 
Current provisions (44,907) (27,715) 
Income received in advance/grants and advances 87,563 (97,937) 
Non-current provisions 2,067 (55,082) 
Net GST receipts/(payments) (a) 333,607 59,449 
Change in GST in receivables/payables (b) (318,623) (57,321) 

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities (17,555,589) (18,781,192) 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

33.  Resources Provided Free of Charge 
During the year no resources were provided to other agencies free of charge for functions outside the 
normal operations of the Institute. 
 

34.  Commitments 
 

 Lease commitments   

 Commitments in relation to leases contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised in 
 the financial statements, are payable as follows: 

 
2014 2013 

 
$ $ 

 Within 1 year 10,587 16,349 
 Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 125 - 

 Total 10,712 16,349 
 Representing:   
 Non-cancellable operating leases 10,712 16,349 

 10,712 16,349 
  

The Institute has a property lease. Also included in the commitments are purchase orders and capital 
commitments outstanding at year end.  These commitments are all inclusive of GST. 

Other expenditure commitments 
Other expenditure commitments for the acquisition of goods and services contracted for at the end of 
the reporting period date but not recognised as liabilities are payable as follows: 

 
2014 2013 

 
$ $ 

    Within 1 year 304,732 - 
    Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - - 

    Total 304,732 - 
 

Capital expenditure commitments 
Capital expenditure commitments, being contracted capital expenditure additional to the amounts 
reported in the financial statements, are payable as follows: 

 
2014 2013 

 
$ $ 

    Within 1 year 73,301 - 
    Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - - 

    Total 73,301 - 
 
35. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
 No contingent liabilities or assets exist as at 31 December 2014. 
 
36. Events occurring after the reporting period 

There are no significant events occurring after Balance Sheet date that materially impact the financial 
statements as statements as at 31 December 2014. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

37.  Explanatory Statement 
Significant variations between estimates and actual results for 2014 and between the actual results for 
2013 and 2014 are shown below.  Significant variations are considered to be those greater than 
$250,000. 

Significant variations between estimated and actual result for 2014. 

 2014 2014  

 Estimate Actual Variance 

 $ $ $ 
Cost of Services    

Employee benefits expense 17,650,545 15,966,267 (1,684,278) 

Other expenses 1,271,449 

 

2,613,701 1,342,252 

Revenue    

Fee for Service 1,852,548 1,145,955 (706,593) 

Student fees and charges 2,963,800 2,536,902 (426,898) 

Income from State Government    

Service appropriation 17,130,697 18,196,216 1,065,519 

Resources received free of charge 291,000 1,776,864 1,485,864 

 

Employee benefits expense 

Estimates were based on 2013 staffing levels and the variance arises from a reduction of 23 employees 
during 2014. 

Other expenses 

The variance is largely attributable to $1,215,492 expenditure on remedial maintenance which was funded 
by the Department of Training and Workforce Development (DTWD).  The maintenance and contribution 
was not anticipated. 

Fee for Service 

Fee for Service revenue was lower in 2014 due to a reduction in demand for customised courses.  This can 
be attributed to a reduction in revenue from training services funded by the Commonwealth through a 
tender process and a reduction in demand by private enterprises. 

Student fees and charges 

The negative variance between the estimated and actual revenue for Student Fees arises from an 
overstatement in the estimates of the impact of increases in student fees introduced in 2014. 

Service appropriation 

The estimate of Service Appropriation did not take into account reimbursements for payments made for 
voluntary redundancies ($398,087) and contributions towards capital and remedial work from the DTWD 
($539,493) which eventuated during 2014. 

Resources received free of charge 

The variation above the estimated amount has due to remedial capital works carried out and paid for by the 
DTWD to the value of $1,215,492. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

37.  Explanatory Statement (continued) 

 Significant variations between the actual results for 2013 and 2014. 

 2014 2013  

   Variance 

 $ $ $ 

Cost of Services    

Employee benefits expense 15,966,267 17,207,574 (1,241,307) 

Other expenses 2,613,701 1,539,760 1,073,941 

Revenue    

Fee for service 1,145,955 1,743,119 (597,164) 

Student fees and charges 2,536,902 1,929,628 607,274 

 Income from State Government    

Service appropriation 18,196,216 19,332,803 (1,136,587) 

Resources received free of charge 1,776,864 559,219 1,217,645 

 

Employee benefits expense 

The variance arises from a reduction of 23 employees during 2014 from the staffing levels of 2013. 

Other expenses 

The variance is largely attributable to $1,215,492 expenditure in 2014 on remedial capital works which was 
funded by the DTWD. 

Fees for service 

Fee for Service revenue declined during 2014 due to a reduction in demand for customized courses.  This 
can be attributed to a reduction in revenue from training services funded by the Commonwealth through a 
tender process and a reduction in demand by private enterprises. 

Student fees and charges 

Student tuition fees were materially higher in 2014 than 2013 which accounted for the variation in results 
between years.  The increase in student tuition fees is attributable to changes in the government funding 
model. 

Service appropriation 

Service Appropriation declined during 2014 as a result of a reduction in the student curriculum hours 
delivered.  As a result payments under the Delivery Performance Agreement were $1.6m lower in 2014 
than in 2013.  This loss was partly offset by reimbursements for payments made for voluntary redundancies 
($398,087) and contributions towards capital and remedial work from the DTWD ($539,493) which 
eventuated during 2014. 

Resources received free of charge 

The majority of the variation between the 2013 and 2014 from resources received free of charge arises from 
remedial capital works carried out and paid for by the DTWD to the value of $1,215,492. 
 
38. Financial Instruments 

(a)  Financial Risk Management Objectives and policies 

Financial instruments held by the Institute are cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash 
equivalents, other financial assets, receivables, payables and refund of payments under DPA (part of other 
liabilities).  The Institute has limited exposure to financial risks. The Institute's overall risk management 
program focus on managing the risk identified below:  
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

38. Financial Instruments (continued) 

 
Credit risk 
Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Institute's receivables defaulting on their 
contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Institute. 

The maximum exposure to credit risk at end of the reporting period in relation to each class of 
recognised financial assets is the gross carrying amount of those assets inclusive of any provisions for 
impairment as show in the table at note 38 (c) ‘Finance instruments disclosures’ and note 22 
‘Receivables’. 

Credit risk associated with the Institute's financial assets is minimal because the main receivable is the 
amounts receivable for trade debtors with only minor exposure to student debts.  Credit risk associate 
with Other Financial Assets in minimal because the Institute has invested funds with reputable Banks 
regulated under the Australian Prudential Regulations. For trade receivables other than government, 
the Institute trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. The Institute has policies in place to 
ensure that material sales of products and services are made to customers with an appropriate credit 
history. Individual student debts are relatively minor in value and are monitored carefully.  At the end of 
the reporting period there are no significant concentrations of credit risk. 

Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk arises when the Institute is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The 
Institute is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of business. The Institute 
has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows including drawdowns of appropriations by 
monitoring forecast cash flows to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet its commitments. 

Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates 
will affect the Institute's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.  The Institute does 
not trade in foreign currency and is not materially exposed to other price risks (for example, equity 
securities or commodity prices changes).  Other than as detailed in the Interest rate sensitivity analysis 
table at Note 38(c), The Institute has a moderate exposure to interest rate risk because interest 
revenue comprises a relatively small proportion of the Institute’s total revenue and it has no other 
borrowings. 
 

(b) Categories of Financial Instruments 
In addition to cash, the carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and 
financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows: 

 2014 2013 

Financial Assets $ $ 

Cash and cash equivalent 4,834,686 5,489,746 

Restricted cash and cash equivalent 911,517 590,796 

Receivables (a) 314,810 395,428 

Other financial assets 1,520,249 - 

Financial Liabilities   

Payables 603,494 684,279 

Amount repayable to DTWD 173,954 - 
(a) The amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable) 

(c)  Financial Instrument Disclosure 
Credit risk  
The following table discloses the Institute's maximum exposure to credit risk and the ageing analysis of 
financial assets. The Institute's maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is 
the carrying of an amount of financial assets as shown below. The table discloses the ageing of 
financial assets that are past due but not impaired and impaired financial assets. The table is based on 
information provided to senior management of the Institute. The Institute does not hold any collateral 
as security or other credit enhancements relating to the financial assets it holds. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

38. Financial Instruments (continued) 

    
 Ageing analysis of financial assets  

  

      
 

 Past due but not impaired  
 
  

   Carrying 
Amount 

Not past due and 
not impaired 

Up to 1 
month 

1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 
years 

Impaired 
Financial 
Assets  

 2014 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Financial Assets              
Cash and cash equivalent 4,834,686 4,834,686      
Restricted cash and cash equivalent 911,517 911,517      
Other financial assets 1,520,249 1,520,249      
Receivables       (a) 314,810 185,392 - 129,418 - - - 

 
7,581,262 7,451,844 - 129,418 - - - 

 2013 
   

 
   Financial Assets 

   
 

   Cash and cash equivalent 5,489,747 5,489,747     - 
Restricted cash and cash equivalent 590,796 590,796     - 
Receivables       (a) 395,428 299,653 61,409 32,397 1,969 - 14,129 

 
6,475,971 6,399,214 61,409 32,397 1,969 - 14,129 

 
(a)  The amount of receivables excludes the GST receivables from the ATO (statutory receivable). 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

38. Financial Instruments (continued) 

Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure 
The following table details the contractual maturity analysis for the Institute’s financial assets and financial liabilities and also their interest rate exposures.  The 
maturity analysis section includes interest and principal cash flows.  The Interest rate exposure section analyses only the carrying amounts of each item. 

Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities 
Interest rate exposure                                             Maturity Dates 

  Weighted 
Average 
Effective 
Interest 

Rate 
% 

Carrying 
Amount 

Fixed 
Interest 

Rate 

Variable 
Interest Rate 

Non-
Interest 
Bearing 

Nominal 
Amount 

Up to 1 
month 

Up to 3 
months 

3 months 
– 1 year 

1-5 
years 

More 
than 5 
years 

 2014 
 

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 
Financial Assets   

 
 

  
  

    Cash and cash equivalent 3.42 4,835 1,374 3,455 6 4,835 3,461 1,374 - - - 
Restricted cash and cash 
equivalent 

3.42 912 912 - - 912  912 - - - 

Other financial assets 4.00 1,520 1,520 - - 1,520 1,000 520  - - 
Receivables       (a) - 315 - - 315 315 315 - - - - 

 
 7,582 3,806 3,455 321 7,582 4,776 2,806 - - - 

Financial Liabilities            
Payables - 603 - - 603 603 603 - - - - 
Amount repayable to DTWD - 174 - - 174 174 174 - - - - 
  777 - - 777 777 777 - - - - 
2013 

  
 

  
  

    Financial Assets         -   
Cash and cash equivalent 3.80 5,490 1,927 3,556 7 5,490 4,062 1,428 - - - 
Restricted cash and cash 
equivalent 

4.03 591 591 - - 591 - 591 - - - 

Receivables       (a) - 395 - - 395 395 395 - - - - 
  6,476 2,518 3,556 402 6,476 4,457 2,019 - - - 
Financial Liabilities            
Payables - 684 - - 684 684 684 - - - - 
 - 684 - - 684 684 684 - - - - 

(a)  The amount of receivables excludes the GST receivables from the ATO (statutory receivable). 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

38. Financial Instruments (continued) 

 
Interest rate sensitivity analysis 
The following table represents a summary of the interest rate sensitivity of the Institute’s financial assets and 
liabilities at the end of the reporting period on the surplus for the period and equity for a 1% change in interest 
rates.  It is assumed that the change in interest rates is held constant throughout the reporting period. 

  - 100 Basis Points + 100 Basis Points 
 Carrying amount Surplus Equity Surplus Equity 
2014 $ $ $ $ $ 
      
Financial Assets      
Cash and cash 
equivalent 

4,828,306 (48,283) (48,283) 48,283 48,283 

Other Financial Assets 1,520,249 (15,202) (15,202) 15,202 15,202 
Restricted Cash and 
cash equivalent 911,517 (9,115) (9,115) 9,115 9,115 

 
Total 
Increase/(Decrease) 

 (72,600) (72,600) 72,600 72,600 

    
 
 
 

 - 100 Basis Points 
 

+ 100 Basis Points 
 

 Carrying amount Surplus Equity Surplus Equity 
2013 $ $ $ $ $ 
      
Financial Assets 5,483,136 (54,831) (54,831) 54,831 54,831 
Cash and cash 
equivalent      

      
Restricted Cash and 
cash equivalent 590,796 (5,908) (5,908) 5,908 5,908 

 
Total 
Increase/(Decrease) 

 (60,739) (60,739) 60,739 60,739 

 
Fair Values 
All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, whether they are carried at 
cost or fair value, are recognised at amounts that represent a reasonable approximation of fair values unless 
otherwise stated in the applicable notes. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

39.  Remuneration of members of the accountable authority and senior officers 

Remuneration of Members of the accountable authority 
The number of members of the accountable authority whose total fees, salaries, superannuation, non-
monetary benefits and other benefits for the financial year, fall within the following bands are: 

 2014 2013 
$   

        $0 - $10,000 10 9 
$10,001 - $20,000 1 - 

$180,001 - $190,000 - 1 
$210,001 - $220,000 1 - 

 $ $ 
Base remuneration and superannuation 241,793 224,987 
Annual leave and long service leave accruals (11,986) (22,109) 
Other benefits 5,302 12,973 

Total remuneration of the members of the accountable authority is: 235,109 215,851 
 

Remuneration of senior officers 

The number of senior officers other than senior officers reported as members of the accountable authority, 
whose total fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits for the financial year, 
fall within the following bands are: 

 2014 2013 
$    

$20,001 - $30,000 1 1 
$60,001 - $70,000 - 1 

$90,001 - $100,000 - 1 
$100,001 - $110,000 - 1 
$110,001 - $120,000 - 1 
$120,001 -$130,000 3 4 
$130,001 - $140,000 5 3 
$140,001 - $150,000 - 1 
$150,000 - $160,000 1 - 
$160,001 - $170,000 1 - 
$180,001 - $190,000 1 - 

     $      $ 
Base remuneration and superannuation 1,598,038 1,491,198 
Annual leave and long service leave accruals (16,651) (66,037) 
Other benefits 9,682 15,728 

The total remuneration of senior officers is: 1,591,069 1,440,889 
 
The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the accountable authority in 
respect of senior officers other than senior officers reported as members of the Institute. 
 
No Senior Officers are members of the Pension Scheme.   
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2014 (continued) 

40.  Remuneration of auditor 

Remuneration payable to the Auditor General in respect to the audit for the current financial year is as 
follows: 

 2014 2013 
 $ $ 
Auditing the accounts, financial statements and performance indicators. 
 
 

68,000 65,500 
  
  

41.  Related bodies 

The Institute has no related bodies. 

 
 

42.  Affiliated bodies 

The Institute has no affiliated bodies. 
 
43. Supplementary financial information 

 2014 2013 
Write-Offs $ $ 
Buildings - 119,000 
Bad debts 8,155 3,856 
Other- cash shortages  - 

Total 8,155 122,856 
 

44.  Schedule of income and expenditure by service 

The Institute provides only one service (as defined by Treasurer’s Instruction 1101(9) and that is Vocational 
Education and Training Delivery. 

In accordance with Section 40 of the Financial Management Act 2006, Colleges are required to prepare and 
submit annual estimates of the financial operations of the Institute for the following year to the Minister of 
Training and Workforce Development; Corrective Services for approval by 30 September each year.  The 
Great Southern Institute of Technology submitted its 2014 financial estimates to the Minister for Training 
and Workforce Development. 
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2015 Forward Financial Estimates 

Section 40 Estimates 
In accordance with Treasurer’s Instruction 953, the annual estimates for the 2015 year are 
hereby included in the 2014 Annual Report. These estimates do not form part of the 2014 
financial statements and are not subject to audit. 

 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 2015 

 $ 
COST OF SERVICES  
Expenses  
Employee benefits expense 17,278,748 
Supplies and services 5,491,305 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 854,441 
Grants and subsidies 5,000 
Cost of Sales 262,225 
Other expenses 1,303,235 
Total Cost of Services 25,194,954 
  
Income  
Revenue  
Fee for service 1,898,862 
Student fees and charges 3,064,972 
Ancillary trading 106,093 
Sales 528,036 
Commonwealth grants and contributions 460,873 
Interest revenue 127,410 
Other revenue 188,516 
Total Revenue 6,374,762 
Gains  
Gain on disposal of non-current assets - 
Total Gains - 
  
Total income other than from State Government 6,374,762 
  
NET COST OF SERVICES 18,820,192 

State funds 17,309,927 
Resources received free of charge 291,000 

Total income from State Government 17,600,927 
 
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD (1,219,265) 
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2015 Forward Financial Estimates (continued) 

 

  Statement of Financial Position 
 

   2015 
 

Current Assets   
   $ 

 
Cash and cash equivalents 3,847,727 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 64,322 
Inventories 48,585 
Receivables 425,695 
Other current assets 147,143 
Total Current Assets 4,533,472 

Non-Current Assets  
Property, plant and equipment 30,884,949 
Total Non-Current Assets 30,884,949 
   
Total Assets 35,418,421 

 
Current Liabilities  
Payables 977,660 
Provisions 2,326,428 
Other current liabilities 178,924 
Total Current Liabilities 3,483,012 

Non-Current Liabilities  
Provisions 726,081 
Total Non-Current Liabilities 726,081 
   
Total Liabilities 4,209,093 

   
NET ASSETS 31,209,328 

  
Equity  
Contributed Equity 11,781,653 
Reserves 7,390,250 
Accumulated surplus/(deficiency) 12,037,425 
TOTAL EQUITY 31,209,328 
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2015 Forward Financial Estimates (continued) 

Statement of Changes in Equity   

    

2015 
$ 
 

 
Balance of equity at start of period 32,428,593 
  
Contributed equity  
Balance at start of period 11,781,653 
Capital Contribution - 
Balance at end of period 11,781,653 
 
Reserves  
Asset revaluation reserve 7,390,250 
Balance at start of period - 
Restated balance at start of period 7,390,250 
Gains / (losses) from asset revaluation - 
Balance at end of period 7,390,250 
  
Accumulated surplus (retained earnings)  
Balance at start of period 13,256,690 
Restated balance at start of period - 
Surplus/(deficit) or profit/(loss) for the period (1,219,265) 
Balance at end of period 12,037,425 
  
Balance of equity at end of period 31,209,328 
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2015 Forward Financial Estimates (continued) 

Statement of Cash Flows 
2015 

 

  
$ 
 

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT  

 
State funds  17,309,927 
Net cash provided by State Government 17,309,927 

 

CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  

 
 
Payments  

 Employee benefits (17,278,748) 
 Supplies and services (5,200,305) 
 Grants and subsidies (5,000) 
 GST payments on purchases (606,488) 
 GST payments to taxation authority - 
 Other payments (1,303,235) 
 Cost of Goods Sold (262,225) 

 
 
Receipts  

 Fee for service 1,898,862 
 Student fees and charges 3,064,972 
 Ancillary trading 106,093 
 Commonwealth grants and contributions 460,873 
 Interest received 127,410 
 GST receipts on sales 262,668 
 GST receipts from taxation authority 343,820 
 Other receipts 188,516 
 Sale of Goods 528,036 
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities (17,674,751) 

 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  
 Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets - 
 Purchase of noncurrent physical assets - 
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities - 
 
Net increase/(decrease) in cash held and cash equivalents (364,824) 
 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 4,276,873 
 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE PERIOD 3,912,049 
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Certification of Key Performance Indicators 
 
 
We hereby certify that the key performance indicators are based on proper records, 
are relevant and appropriate for assisting users to assess Great Southern Institute of 
Technology’s performance and fairly represents the performance of Great Southern 
Institute of Technology for the financial year ended 31 December 2014. 
 
 
 

 
 
SCOTT LEARY 
Chair, Governing Council 
11 March 2015 
 
 
 

 
 
LIDIA ROZLAPA 
Managing Director 
11 March 2015 
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Key Performance Indicators  
 
Government Goal 
 
A flexible and innovative training sector which provides the skills required of people 
to realise their potential. (Training WA 2009) 
 
Desired Outcome 
 
To provide students with the skills to fulfill their potential and build our region’s 
prosperity. (Institute Strategic Plan 2013-15) 

 
Effectiveness Indicators 
 
The four effectiveness Indicators are:  

1. Annual VET profile target achievement 
2. Overall student satisfaction 
3. Graduate employment status 
4. Graduate satisfaction 

 
Profile Target Achievement i 
 
This indicator reports the effectiveness of Great Southern Institute of Technology in 
meeting profiled DPA targets. The delivery profile is negotiated with the Department 
of Training and Workforce Development.  
 
Planned profile funded delivery for 2014 was 1,066,004 SCH, and the institute 
exceeded this target by 0.25% 

 
 

Profile Achievement 
  2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 
Planned 964,630 1,134,201 1,134,201 1,107,937 1,066,004 
Achieved 1,149,177 1,061,808 1,142,742 1,134,327 1,068,626 
Achievement % 119.1% 93.6% 100.8% 102.4% 100.2% 
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The following table displays allocations by industry group. Variations between actual 
and planned delivery generally occurred as a result of changed student and industry 
demand. All variations were within agreed DPA parameters.  

 

 
 
In 2014 the Institute delivered 169,508 SCH of non-profiled delivery representing a 
9.78% decrease on performance compared to 2013.  
 
This decline in single subscriber and contracted fee for service delivery reflects a 
tightening of the contestable market driven in part by reduced tenders for training 
delivery. This has led to a 6.36% reduction in total SCH delivery between 2013 and 
2014. 
 

Total SCH Achievement 

 2011 2012 2013 2014 Target 
Profile 1,061,808 1,142,742 1,134,327 1,068,626 1,066,004 

Non Profile 199,762 254,107 187,882 169,508  

GSIT Total 1,261,570 1,396,849 1,322,209 1,238,134 
  

  

wadot_group GroupDesc 2010 2011 2012 2013 Planned Actual Achieved
01A Recreation Sports and Entertainment 1,730          1,730          2,295          2,960          8,150          18,380       225.5%
01B Visual and Performing Arts 64,483       57,453       70,269       38,601       22,300       20,983       94.1%
01C Design 16,513       11,918       11,245       13,365       14,130       8,625          61.0%
02A Automotive 27,642       23,728       20,338       29,141       18,901       34,000       179.9%
03A Building and Constructions 86,144       105,335     128,754     123,079     111,216     57,935       52.1%
03B Surveying and Building 11,190       8,310          6,660          11,000       9,965          6,220          62.4%
04A Community Service Workers 71,615       80,560       51,915       59,170       54,924       49,000       89.2%
04B Education and Childcare 61,800       94,915       79,255       82,695       69,570       90,598       130.2%
04C Health 95,141       96,113       104,148     116,140     119,003     99,134       83.3%
05A Finance Insurance Property Service Workers 3,352          1,487          859             6,347          4,560          4,490          98.5%
06A Food Trades and Processing 2,145          950             435             500             
07A Clothing Footwear and Soft Furnishings 8,380          10,290       9,925          9,015          9,552          8,905          93.2%
07B Furniture Manufacture 5,681          7,109          4,212          3,160          3,410          5,530          162.2%
08B Printing and Publishing 2,750          980             
09A Engineering and Drafting 400             21                756             
09B Metal and Mining 29,417       21,836       41,934       25,627       28,001       27,523       98.3%
10B Forestry, Farming and Landcare 201,331     119,532     172,131     214,688     168,297     271,812     161.5%
10D Horticulture 59,744       49,530       55,536       39,339       40,000       44,232       110.6%
12A Personal Service 32,925       40,102       40,922       48,750       38,870       31,109       80.0%
12B Retail 1,405          4,555          990             1,865          
13A Cooking 18,844       10,400       10,486       11,913       12,976       17,694       136.4%
13B Hospitality 14,370       12,301       12,019       14,322       15,646       14,794       94.6%
13C Tourism 4,730          5,725          10,490       6,255          5,700          6,555          115.0%
14A Transport Trades, Storage and Associated 372             180             
15A Electrical and Electronic Engineering 5,068          5,194          
15B Electrical Trades 23,465       20,895       21,347       22,470       27,054       20,601       76.1%
16A Accounting and Other Business Services 52,570       47,390       59,790       53,275       51,799       49,575       95.7%
16B Management 13,960       8,750          13,825       5,195          12,000       3,190          26.6%
16C Office and Clerical 79,155       72,145       61,075       48,415       50,400       40,195       79.8%
17A Computing 38,100       26,465       29,715       34,450       19,830       21,400       107.9%
18A Science and Technical Workers 13,760       20,645       20,025       12,415       21,300       8,045          37.8%
19B Adult Literacy/ ESL 67,260       61,925       60,436       62,170       77,480       45,460       58.7%
19C Languages 7,245          10,650       8,970          6,040          3,000          2,500          83.3%
19E Targetted Access and Participation Courses 26,490       22,890       32,720       31,785       47,970       59,385       123.8%

TOTALS 1,149,177 1,061,808 1,142,742 1,134,327 1,066,004 1,068,626 100.2%

2014

87 



Overall Student Satisfactionii 
 
The Department of Training and Workforce Development contracts Patterson 
Research Group to conduct an annual student satisfaction survey. This survey 
measures students’ perceptions of the effectiveness of the Institute’s programs. 
 
The 2014 data shows that 91.8% of students were satisfied with their course. This 
compares favourably with the WA state average of 86.9%. The slight increase in 
overall satisfaction over a two-year period, from 89.1% in 2012 to 91.8% in 2014 is 
however not statistically significant. 

 
Student Satisfaction 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Graduate Employment Statusiv 

 
The bi-annual national Student Outcomes Survey conducted by NCVER in 2013 
measures student employment, further study destinations, and assessment of the 
training undertaken.  
 
Survey questionnaires were sent to a stratified, randomly selected sample of 
graduates and module completers with national response rates of 41.9% and 29.7%, 
respectively. For Great Southern Institute of Technology, response rates were 39.4% 
and 30.3%, respectively. 
 
Data from this survey was then used to measure the effectiveness indicators of 
graduate employment status and graduate satisfaction.  
 
The proportion of graduates in employment is a key performance indicator that shows 
the extent to which the institute is meeting industry and community need for training 
services that equip graduates for changing employment opportunities. 
 
The 2013 Student Outcomes Survey measured a graduate employment rate for the 
institute of 85.1%, which exceeded the target graduate employment rate of 78-82%v. 
This performance is partly attributable to the improving regional labour market. 

 
Graduate Employmentvi 

 
 

GSIT 
2009 

TAFE
WA 
2009 

TAFE
Aust 
2009 

GSIT 
2011 

TAFE
WA 
2011 

TAFE
Aust 
2011 

GSIT 
2013 

TAFE
WA 
2013 

TAFE
Aust 
2013 

Not in Labour 
 

11.8% 11.8% 11.1% 9.8% 10.0% 10.0% 6.9% 8.5% 9.6% 
Unemployed 10.4% 10.1% 11.9% 8.5% 9.9% 9.9% 7.9% 10.8% 13.2% 

Employed 77.6% 78.0% 77.1% 81.8% 79.7% 79.7% 85.1% 80.4% 77.1% 

 
 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Targetiii 

GSIT 93.2% 89.9% 89.1% 92.2% 91.8% 88-92% 

WA 86.3% 88.2% 86.3% 85.9% 86.9%  
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Graduate Satisfaction 
 
The bi-annual Student Outcomes Survey conducted by NCVER in 2013 also 
measures graduate satisfaction.  
 
Graduate satisfaction is a key performance indicator that measures the extent to 
which Great Southern Institute of Technology graduates wholly or partially 
achieved their main reason for undertaking the course and is compared to the 
State average. It measures students’ perceptions of training effectiveness. 
 
The 2013 Student Outcomes Survey measured overall graduate satisfaction for 
the institute at 86.2%. 
 

Graduate Satisfaction 
 
 2011 2013 Targetvii 

GSIT 89.7% 86.2% 86-90% 
TAFE WA 87.5% 89.5%  

TAFE Aust 85.8% 88.0%  
 

Note:  
Previously reported figures for graduate satisfaction were based on the question 
‘Satisfied with overall quality of training’. This table has now been amended to report 
graduate satisfaction based on the question ‘fully or partially achieved their main 
reason for doing the training’, ensuring that Great Southern Institute of Technology 
KPIs are consistent with those reported by other State Training Providers. 
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Efficiency Indicator 
 

Cost of delivery measured against the unit of a ‘Student Curriculum Hour’ (SCH). 
This is defined as the nominal hours assigned to a program of study by the 
curriculum or, in the absence of an endorsed curriculum, by common agreement with 
the Department of Training and Workforce Development’s Statistical Unit. 
 
Both profiled and non-profiled student curriculum hours are included in this efficiency 
indicator. 

  
Overall Cost per Student Curriculum Hour  
 
The overall cost per student curriculum hour demonstrates the efficiency with which 
Great Southern Institute of Technology manages its resources to enable the 
provision of vocational education and training programs. The overall cost per 
student curriculum hour shows the aggregate unit cost of delivery output per student 
curriculum hour, based on the delivery costs as detailed in the 2014 Financial 
Statements.  
 

 Delivery Costs 

 

 
The institute’s overall cost of services per student curriculum hour of $20.34 is more 
than the Section 40 estimate to Treasury of $20.24. 
 

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 
Total SCH 
Delivery 1,352,155 1,261,570 1,396,849 1,322,209 1,238,134 

Total 
Expenditure $23,201,621 24,493,686 $26,033,991 $25,175,667 $25,185,617 

Overall Cost 
Per SCH $17.16 $19.42 $18.64 $19.04 $20.34 
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The variation of actual against forecast represents an increase in $0.10 per student 
curriculum hour, and is attributed to the lower non-profile hours delivered due to a 
reduction in commonwealth grants and enrolments in fee for service training. 

 
Cost per student curriculum hour increased by 6.8% from $19.04 in 2013 to $20.34 in 
2014. 

 
While this is outside the Section 40 benchmark of a +/- 5% movement in the cost per 
student curriculum hour, the increase is attributed to $1,215,492 in remedial works 
expenditure funded by the Department of Training and Workforce Development.   

 
With the increased remedial works expenditure excluded, the cost per student 
curriculum hour in 2014 reduces to $19.36 representing a movement of $0.32 or 
1.7% increase and is within the required financial ratio of +/- 5% movement. 
 
i In 2014 actual SCH was calculated using the ‘end of study’ based reporting methodology in compliance with 
the National Training Agreement 
ii Notes to the 2014 Student Satisfaction Survey 
The 2014 Student Satisfaction Survey fieldwork was conducted between Wednesday 3rd September and Friday 
31st October 2014. Respondents were drawn from a random sample of Institute students who were enrolled in 
either the first or second semester of 2014. As in previous years response data has been weighted back to the 
total student population based on a combination of gender, age group, and student status. 
In 2014, the total response rate for the Institute was 17.9% (i.e. n= 594 / N= 3,322). The confidence interval is 
+/- 2.00%; this means that with a 95% level of confidence, the survey results lie within -2.00% and +2.00% of 
the actual results among the total GSIT population. The standard error is 1.00%. 
Satisfaction is expressed as a percentage derived from the number of 'very satisfied' and ‘satisfied’ respondents 
as a proportion of the total survey respondents. 
iii Trend target from previous years 
iv Notes to the 2013 Student Outcomes Survey: 
This publication presents information about the outcomes of Great Southern Institute of Technology students 
who completed their vocational education and training (VET) during 2012. The figures are derived from the 
Student Outcomes Survey, which is an annual survey that covers students who have an Australian address as 
their usual address and are awarded a qualification (graduates), or who successfully complete part of a course 
and then leave the VET system (module completers).Survey questionnaires were sent to a stratified, randomly 
selected sample of graduates and module completers from the National VET Provider Collection, with survey 
responses weighted to population benchmarks from the collection. National response rates were 41.9% and 
29.7%, respectively. For Great Southern Institute of Technology, response rates were 39.4% and 30.3%, 
respectively. 
v Trend target from previous years 
vi Graduate employment time series figures for 2011 have been sourced from the 2013 NCVER Student 
Outcomes Survey. There is a discrepancy between these figures and the figures published in the 2011 NCVER 
Student Outcomes Survey – with the 2011 NCVER Student Outcomes Survey recording a figure of 79.9% for 
employed graduates. 
vii Trend target from previous years 
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Ministerial Directives 
 
Treasurer’s Instruction 903 (12) requires Great Southern Institute of Technology 
to disclose details of any Ministerial directives relevant to the setting of desired 
outcomes or operational objectives, the achievement of desired outcomes or 
operational objectives, investment activities and financing activities.  

No such directives were issued to Great Southern Institute of Technology. 

Other Financial Disclosures 
 
Fees and Charges TI903 (13) (i) 
 
The institute’s fees and charges are set by the Department of Training 
and Workforce Development and collected in accordance with the 
requirements of the: 

• Vocational Education and Training Act 1996  
• Vocational Education and Training (Colleges) Regulations 1996 
• Vocational Education and Training (General) Regulations 2009. 

 
Major Capital Projects TI903 (13) (ii) 
 
Capital works projects completed 
 
The building of a new health science facility was completed on time with 
occupancy in August.  The new building was the main element of the total  
$5.76 million project, funded by Royalties for Regions, with upgrades to existing 
M and A blocks included in the project scheduled for completion in February 
2015. 

Extensive remedial works projects were completed throughout the year totalling 
$1,215,492, funded by the Department of Training and Workforce Development 
(DTWD), with major projects including upgrades to fire, sewer and gas services, 
removal of two asbestos demountables, roof replacement and installation of 
roof anchors, new welding bays, air conditioning replacement, and upgrade to 
security cameras. The total cost of remedial works was under the initial budget 
estimate of $1,238,000. 

Capital works in progress 

Completion of the upgrades to M and A block as the final stages of the Health 
Science Project are due for completion in February 2015 with the total project 
completion cost estimated at $5.41milion. 

An upgrade to the institute’s library has commenced with concept design and 
consultation completed. The project objective – to create a student hub, 
promoting a modern engaging and active learning environment – is budgeted at 
$1million and funded using the balance of funding from the Health Sciences 
Facility (estimated at $350,000) funded by Royalties for Regions, with the 
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remainder funded internally by the institute. The project is due for completion in 
December 2015 and is expected to be completed on budget. 

Funding for an undercover walkway connecting the new health science building 
and the library, valued at $150,000 funded by DTWD, has been received with 
preliminary concept design. The project will be incorporated with the library 
upgrade to ensure appropriate design and integration is considered. It is 
expected this project will be completed on budget. 

Employment and Industrial Relations TI903 (13) (iii) 
 
Staff employed by Great Southern Institute of Technology 
 

 23.12.10 24.11.11 22.11.12 21.11.13 20.11.14 
Fixed Pay 189 221 216 206 183 
Casuals 126 95 87 70 73 

   
Staff Development 
 
The institute has a commitment to the ongoing professional development of 
staff and 2014 saw a variety of relevant online courses and healthy living 
initiatives offered to staff. In addition, the institute has a policy whereby staff are 
supported to gain relevant qualifications which are offered in-house and 
lecturers are also supported in gaining higher-level teaching qualifications via 
the same policy. 

Industrial Relations 
 
A replacement General Agreement was finalised for administrative staff during 
2014 and in-principle agreement was reached in regard to a replacement 
General Agreement for lecturing staff. 

No major industrial relations claims are reportable for 2014 and there were no 
matters referred to the Industrial Relations Commission or similar jurisdictions. 

Workers’ Compensation 
 
During 2014, there were five workers’ compensation claims lodged. Three of the 
claims have received final clearances, one claim was denied and one claim 
remains open but inactive with the worker not suffering any lost time from work.  
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Other Legal Requirements 
 
Advertising 
 
In accordance with s175ZE of the Electoral Act 1907, Great Southern Institute 
of Technology incurred the following expenditure in advertising, market 
research, polling, direct mail and media advertising. 

Total expenditure for 2014 was 62,632.31. 

 
Expenditure Total Expenditure Amount 
Media Advertising 
Organisations 

$57,545.45 OMD 
Adcorp 
Dubsat Pty Ltd 

$49,878.13 
$7634.32 

$33.00 
Direct Advertising $3952.28 Orana Cinemas 

Albany Gateway 
Facebook 
Nyabing News 

$2181.84 
$250.00 
1472.44 

48.00 
Directories $1134.58 Albany Business Centre 

Albany Chamber of 
Commerce and Industry 

$250.00 
 

$884.58 
 

 

In-class literacy support programs USIQ and CAVSS have been taken up by 
students throughout the institute. 
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Board and Committee Remuneration 
 
The following payments were made to Governing Council members. Payments 
are made per meeting, and the gross/actual remuneration column shows the 
total paid over the year. 
 

Great Southern Institute of Technology Governing Council 

Position Name Type of 
remuneration 

Period of 
membership 

Gross/actual 
remuneration $ 

Chair Scott Leary Salary Full year 8150.73 
Chair Scott Leary Meeting fee Full year 1590.00 
Chair Scott Leary Travel 

allowance 
Full year 867.86 

Deputy 
Chair 

Audrey 
Jackson 

Meeting fee January to 
July 

290.00 

Member Anne Stafford Meeting fee – 
member 

January to 
September 

787.00 

Deputy 
Chair  

Anne Stafford Meeting fee – 
Deputy Chair 

October to 
December 

824.00 

Member Suresh 
Balakrishnan 

Meeting fee  Full year 1114.00 

Member Mark Dowling Meeting fee  Full year 1114.00 
Member Gillian Evans Meeting fee  January to 

June 
230.00 

Member Veronica Fleay Meeting fee  Full year 1017.00 
Member Simon Lyas Meeting fee  Full year 1441.00 
Member David Marsh Meeting fee  Full year 1114.00 
Member Suzanne 

Yewers 
Meeting fee  Full year 1671.00 

Member Suzanne 
Yewers 

Travel 
allowance 

Full year 313.92 

Total $20,524.51 
 
 
Disability Access and Inclusion Plan Outcomes 
 
Great Southern Institute’s Disability Access and Inclusion Plan (DAIP) 2011 – 
2016 outlines the institute’s strategies to ensure the access and  inclusion of 
people with disability in all aspects of training, facilities and events.   

A report on the institute’s DAIP Implementation Plan 2013-2014 was provided to 
the Disability Services Commission in June 2014. 
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Throughout 2014, the institute consulted with students with disability, 
community agencies and families to ensure access to training and services.  

The institute provided individualised study support to meet the needs of 
students with disability participating in training.  

Training specifically designed to meet the learning needs of people with 
disability was provided at Albany and Katanning campuses, including Certificate 
III in Clothing Production, Certificate I in Visual Art, Certificate II in Horticulture 
and Certificate I in Industrial Skills. 

The Busy Bee Creations project continued for a very successful third year. This 
project assists people with disability to build on their sewing skills to develop 
high-quality products for sale. Training was provided in sewing construction and 
production skills, and retail, marketing and small business management skills. 
Students sold their products through a range of outlets including market stalls, 
via Facebook, at the institute and through their community networks. 

A Creative Catering course was conducted for students with disability to provide 
training in entry-level hospitality skills. Participants completed a Certificate I in 
Industrial Skills while developing their food preparation, cooking and customer 
service skills. 

Students with disability participated in Learning for the Future classes using 
iPads and software applications to increase their information and technology 
skills while also improving numeracy and literacy skills through completing units 
from the Certificates in General Education for Adults. 

Great Southern Institute worked with other members of the Albany Transition 
Pathway Group to produce the Employing People with Disability booklet. This 
booklet is designed to encourage employers in the Great Southern to recruit a 
person with a disability. It outlines the benefits to the employer and employee, 
as well as contacts for gaining assistance. 

Throughout the year the institute continued to implement accessibility 
improvements across its campuses including upgrading accessible toilet 
facilities and pathways. New buildings at the institute have been designed to be 
fully accessible. Personal Emergency Evacuation Plans for students with 
disability were established. 

Institute information is provided in a range of formats on request, and learning 
materials are provided in accessible formats, including electronically. The 
Disability Liaison Officer liaises with community organisations, schools and 
agencies and provides information through e-newsletters and to community 
networks to ensure people with disability are informed of the institute’s training 
opportunities and support services. Information regarding the institute’s 
courses, services, events and facilities, including services for people with 
disability, is available on the institute website. 

Great Southern Institute provides information and training to staff to ensure 
quality service and an awareness of issues affecting people with disability.   
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Information on meeting the needs of people with disability is provided to all staff 
at induction sessions and also online. Staff completed a range of professional 
development courses including Mental Health First Aid workshops, First Aid, 
Epilepsy Essentials training, Reasonable Adjustment, and Classroom 
Management of Students with Complex Emotional and Behavioural Disorders. 

The institute continued to provide a range of opportunities for people with 
disability to provide feedback on accessibility, services and training at the 
institute, including customer feedback forms, online and verbal feedback, and 
grievance procedures. Support is provided to assist people with disability to 
provide feedback, if requested. 

Compliance with Public Sector Standards and Ethical Codes 
 
During 2014, there were no allegations of any breaches of Public Sector 
Standards. 

In terms of compliance with Ethical Codes and Behaviour, there was one minor 
issue relating to an officer’s conduct which was dealt with in accordance with 
the institute’s disciplinary processes and resolved satisfactorily. In addition, 
there was one matter reported to the Corruption and Crime Commission 
involving petty cash irregularities, which was investigated internally and 
appropriate remedial action taken. 

During 2014, the institute’s Code of Conduct and the Disciplinary Policy and 
Procedure were both reviewed and updated. 

In September, 2014, all managers and supervisors attended a workshop 
conducted by the Public Sector Commission on recruiting for integrity, 
managing workplace performance and conflicts of interest in the Public Sector. 

Recordkeeping Plan 
Under Section 19 of the State Records Act 2000, every Government 
organisation is required to have a Recordkeeping Plan (RKP) approved by the 
State Records Commission.  

An RKP covering all State Training Providers was approved by the State 
Records Commission on 7 December 2012 and is valid until 2017. Great 
Southern Institute of Technology continues to work with other State Training 
Providers to improve recordkeeping practices and share common resources.  

In 2014, a follow-up to the 2013 assessment of the institute’s recordkeeping 
system TRIM was conducted by external consultants Information Enterprises 
Australia. The institute has worked towards applying further recommendations 
throughout 2014.  

The institute has implemented strategies supported by policies and procedures 
to ensure employees are aware of their recordkeeping responsibilities. All staff, 
through the induction program, receive information on the requirements of 
recordkeeping. Further information and updates on records management are 
distributed to staff as necessary, in addition to any systems training required. 

97 



Sustainability 
 
A Sustainability Action Plan initiated in 2013 details the institute’s commitment 
to conducting business in an ethical and sustainable manner, and underpins 
institute planning, decision making and reporting. 

The institute’s strong culture of environmental sustainability is driven by its 
Seeds of Sustainability committee. 

All training programs include a sustainability unit, and the institute’s own 
initiatives and infrastructure are used as part of these programs to demonstrate 
best practice. 

These include rain harvesting and water reuse, wind turbine power generation, 
solar panel use and compliance to a five-star energy rating system. 

The new Health Sciences and Community Services block (M Block), opened in 
October, was designed to comply with the institute’s stringent environmental 
sustainability standards for all construction work. A Green Star Feasibility 
Report before the start of construction ensured this building met the equivalent 
of a four-star rating. 

Numerous initiatives during the year included the setting up of a ‘sustainability 
trail’ featuring 14 QR signs, around the Albany campus. Using a QR code app 
on their smartphone, people can follow the trail and read about each site online. 

Staff and students also continued to embrace the twice-yearly Freecycling 
event, during which donated redundant stationery and used office supplies are 
offered free of charge. Plastic-free July was another well-supported campaign. 

 
Government Policy Requirements 
 
Occupational Safety, Health and Injury Management 
 
Great Southern Institute of Technology is committed to providing and 
maintaining a safe working environment for all staff, clients, visitors and 
contractors.  

We continually work towards achieving an accident-free workplace through 
effective administration, education and training to maximise opportunities for 
improvement in safety performance.  

The OSH policy states that all employees, particularly those who supervise staff 
or students, should ensure that they are familiar with their obligations under 
Occupational Safety and Health (OSH) and associated legislation as it relates to 
their position, and take all steps within their power to meet those obligations. 

The intent of the institute’s OSH policy is to promote and improve the standards 
of occupational safety and health within Great Southern Institute of Technology. 
It is recognised that the objectives of this policy can best be achieved through 
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effective communication, consultation and cooperation between all levels of 
staff. The institute adopted, and successfully implemented, the WorkSafe 
guidance note ‘formal consultative processes at the workplace’. Implemented 
systems to consult on safety and health matters at the institute are:  

• Safety and health representatives 
• A safety and health committee  
• A process for resolution of safety and health issues. 
 
Great Southern Institute of Technology is committed to providing injury 
management support to all workers who sustain a work-related injury or illness 
with a focus on safe and early return to meaningful work and in accordance with 
the Workers Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981. The institute’s 
Workers Compensation/Injury Management procedure ensures staff and line 
managers are aware of return-to-work plans and outline the steps to be taken to 
assist a worker to return to work following a work-related injury or illness. 

An accredited external assessment of the institute was completed in 2009 and 
in 2012 an internal assessment was conducted with silver status achieved. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Measure 

Actual Results Results against Target  

2011 2012 2013 
Average 

last 3 
years  

2014 PSC Target set for 
2012/14 Result 

Number of fatalities 0 0 0 0 0 0 Achieved 

Lost time injury and/or 
disease incident rate  

1.83% 1.56% 0.52% 1.30% 0.57% 
0 or 10% 

improvement on the 
previous 3 years 

Achieved 

Lost time injury and/or 
disease severity rate  

25 50 100 58.3 100 
0 or 10% 

improvement on the 
previous 3 years 

Not 
Achieved  

Percentage of injured 
workers returned to 
work  

 
    

 
   

 (i) within 13 weeks 83% 80% 100% 87.6% 100% Greater than or 
equal to 80% 

Achieved  
(ii) within 26 Weeks n/a 100% n/a 100% n/a 

Percentage of 
managers trained in 
occupational safety, 
health and injury 
management 
responsibilities 

100% 80% 90% 90% 90% Greater than or 
equal to 80% 

Achieved 

99 



Governance Disclosures 
 
Contracts with Senior Officers 
In accordance with the requirements of Treasurer’s Instruction 903(14) on 
disclosure of interest of senior officers: 

• No senior officer has had any shareholding in the institute 
• To the best of our knowledge, no senior officer has any interest in 

contracts made or proposed with the institute. 
 
Strategic and Business Plans 
 
In 2013, the institute published its Strategic Plan 2013-2015. This plan was 
reviewed in 2014 to confirm that it continued to reflect the priorities and 
directions of the institute’s annual business plan. 

International Students 
 
Enrolments of international students were supported with services including 
accommodation and employment assistance, pastoral care, liaison with 
lecturers and assistance with visa enquiries. 

 

 

International students at Great Southern Institute of Technology in 2014 came 
from the UK, Philippines, Germany, Korea, Italy and India. 
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